Public Document Pack

BEST ACHIEVING
COUNCIL OF THE YEAR

PLYMOUTH

CITY COUNCIL

Please ask for: Amelia Boulter, Democratic Support Officer

Barry Keel
Chief Executive

Plymouth City Council

Civic Centre
Plymouth PLI 2AA

www.plymouth.gov.uk/democracy

Date: 2 November 201 |
T: 01752 304570 E: amelia.boulter@plymouth.gov.uk

CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLE OVERVIEW AND
SCRUTINY PANEL

Date: Thursday 10 November 201 |
Time: |0am
Venue: Council House (Next to Civic Centre)

Members:
Councillor Wildy, Chair

Councillor Stark, Vice Chair

Councillors Mrs Beer, Bowie, Mrs Bowyer, Mrs Bragg, Browne, Delbridge, Mrs Dolan, Haydon,
Singh and Tuohy.

Statutory Co-opted Representatives:
Kevin Willis — Parent Governor Representative

Co-opted Representatives:
Alderman Purnell — Co-opted Representative

Members are invited to attend the above meeting to consider the items of business overleaf.
Members and officers are requested to sign the attendance list at the meeting.
Please note that unless the chair of the meeting agrees, mobile phones should be switched off

and speech, video and photographic equipment should not be used in meetings.

Barry Keel
Chief Executive



CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLE OVERVIEW AND
SCRUTINY PANEL

AGENDA

PART | - PUBLIC MEETING

APOLOGIES
To receive apologies for non-attendance submitted by Panel Members.
DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

Members will be asked to make any declarations of interest in respect of items on this
agenda.

MINUTES (Pages | - 8)
The panel will be asked to confirm the minutes of the meeting on 8 September 201 |.

CHAIR'S URGENT BUSINESS

To receive reports on business that, in the opinion of the Chair, should be brought
forward for urgent consideration.

TRACKING RESOLUTIONS AND FEEDBACK FROM (Pages 9 - 38)
MANAGEMENT BOARD

The panel will monitor progress on previous resolutions and receive feedback from the
management board.

UPDATES FROM PARTNER ORGANISATIONS

The panel to note updates received from -

a. Corporate Parenting Group (Pages 39 - 44)
b. Children and Young People's Trust (Pages 45 - 62)
TASK AND FINISH GROUP REPORT (Pages 63 - 78)

The panel to receive an update from the Children’s Emotional Wellbeing and Mental
Health Task and Finish Group.

INTEGRATED YOUTH SUPPORT SERVICE (Pages 79 - 84)

To receive a report on Integrated Youth Support Service.



9. PRIORITIES AND CHALLENGES (Pages 85 - 86)
The panel to receive a report on the University Technical College (UTC).

10. ACADEMIES/SCHOOL FUNDING
The panel to receive an update on academies buyback and school funding.

1. CHILD POVERTY (Pages 87 - 94)
The panel to receive the Child Poverty Action Plan.

12. YOUTH JUSTICE PLAN (Pages 95 - 122)
The panel to receive the Youth Justice Plan.

13. WORKPROGRAMME (Pages 123 - 124)
The panel will consider its work programme for 2010/1 1.

14. EXEMPT BUSINESS
To consider passing a resolution under Section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act
1972 to exclude the press and public from the meeting for the following item(s) of
business on the grounds that it (they) involve the likely disclosure of exempt information
as defined in paragraph(s) of Part | of Schedule 12A of the Act, as amended by the
Freedom of Information Act 2000.

PART Il (PRIVATE MEETING)

AGENDA

MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC TO NOTE

that under the law, the Panel is entitled to consider certain items in private. Members of the
public will be asked to leave the meeting when such items are discussed.

NIL.



This page is intentionally left blank



23.

Page 1

Agenda ltem 3

Children and Young People Overview and Scrutiny Panel

Thursday 8 September 201 1

PRESENT:

Councillor Wildy, in the Chair.
Councillor Stark, Vice Chair.

Councillors Mrs Beer, Bowie, Browne, Mrs Dolan, Haydon, Mrs Nicholson,
Penberthy and Tuohy.

Co-opted Representatives: Mr Kevin Willis and Alderman Purnell.

Apologies for absence: Councillors Mrs Bowyer, Mrs Bragg, Delbridge and Singh
and Jenny Evans and Kerry Whittlesea

Also in attendance: Maggie Carter — Assistant Director (Learner and Family
Support), Mark Collings - Children’s Fund Programme Manager, Joy Howick — Head
of Service, Children in the Community, Sally Walsh — Assistant City Librarian,
Alasdair MacNaughtan — City Librarian, Giles Perritt — Lead Officer, Amelia Boulter
— Democratic Support Officer.

The meeting started at 10.00 am and finished at 12.20 pm.

Note: At a future meeting, the committee will consider the accuracy of these draft minutes,
so they may be subject to change. Please check the minutes of that meeting to confirm
whether these minutes have been amended.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

In accordance with the Code of Conduct, the following declarations of interest were

made, as follows —

Name Minute Reason Interest
Councillor Beer | Minute 37 — Update from | Employed by Devon | Personal.
partner organisations — |and Cornwall Police
Local Safeguarding | and used the services
Children Board. of NSPCC  when
working  with  her
clients.
Councillor Dolan | Minute 28 - Priorities | Chair of Building and | Personal.
and challenges. Catering Committee at
Devonport High
School for Girls.
Councillor Stark | Minute 28 — Priorities | Governor of All Saints | Personal.

and challenges.

and Stoke Damerel.

Children and Young People Overview and Scrutiny Panel Thursday 8 September 2011




24.

25.

26.

Page 2

Name Minute Reason Interest
Councillor Wildy | Minute 28 — Priorities | Partner is a Governor | Personal.
and challenges. of Lipson Community
College.
Kevin Willis Minute 28 — Priorities | Governor of Ridgeway | Personal.
and challenges. School and Chair of
the School Admissions
Forum.
MINUTES

Agreed that the minutes of the 14 July 201 | were approved as a correct record.

CHAIR'S URGENT BUSINESS

The Chair informed the panel that Councillor Mrs Nicholson would no longer be a
member of this panel. The Chair thanked Councillor Mrs Nicholson for being an
outstanding panel member and for her valued contribution.

TRACKING RESOLUTIONS AND FEEDBACK FROM MANAGEMENT
BOARD

The panel considered the tracking resolutions and those present commented as
follows —

regarding minute 3(4), Faith representation. Councillor Stark had further
talks with the Bishop and informed the panel that the Diocese Director of
Education would be looking at the matter of putting forward a co-opted
representative to the panel;

regarding minute 3(3), Parent Governor representation. A meeting to
address the election of parent governor representatives to the panel would
take place in October;

regarding minute |7, LSP Theme Groups. This resolution needs to be clear
to ensure that the officers provide the relevant information to the panel;
regarding minute 20, in-year admissions. The panel were informed that the
School Admissions Forum meeting would take place after this item would be
reviewed by the panel and therefore this item to be kept under review;
regarding minute 18(3), Children Workforce Induction Programme, the panel
noted the update received and the benefits of councillors attending parts of
the Children Workforce Induction Programme;

regarding minute 18(4), Uptake of free school meals. The panel noted the
update received. It was reported that this is an update on uptake of free
school meals, eligibility of free school meals was another issue;

regarding minute 18(5), Full production kitchens, the panel noted the update
received. It was reported that the tuition service and ACE service kitchens
were not yet complete with meals currently being transported from Ford
Primary school.

Children and Young People Overview and Scrutiny Panel Thursday 8

September 2011




27.

28.

Page 3

Agreed that —

l. the panel to be emailed the Childcare Workforce Induction
Programme pack;

2. the panel receive details on how the Childcare Workforce Induction
Programme is funded;

3. the panel to receive information on the eligibility criteria and the
process for registering for free school meals at its November panel
meeting;

4. the panel to look at Child Poverty at its November panel meeting.

ANNUAL OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY REPORT 2010/11
The panel noted the Annual Overview and Scrutiny Report 2010/1 1.
PRIORITIES AND CHALLENGES

Maggie Carter, Assistant Director (Learner and Family Support) reported that this is
a summary of work currently undertaken by Children Services.

In response to questions raised, it was reported that —

a. the 15 Munro recommendations within the report were a summary of
the full Munro recommendations;

b. in relation to the SEN Green Paper, the Department for Education
were seeking pathfinder bids. The local authority had submitted an
application to become a pathfinder and would hear shortly on
whether the bid had been successful;

c. SEN support services were not subject to the Academies buy back
service.

The panel discussed Child Poverty and the paper due to go to Cabinet on 14
September 201 | as a result of a motion of notice at City Council on 25 July 201 1.
The panel raised concerns that the Child Poverty Strategy and Plan contained no
budget costings and fairly weak milestones.

Agreed that —
l. the following recommendation be made to Cabinet at its meeting of

|4 September 201 | for agreement by Chair and Vice-Chair of
Overview and Scrutiny Management Board.

Children and Young People Overview and Scrutiny Panel Thursday 8
September 2011



20.

Page 4

The Child Poverty Multi-agency Delivery Plan prepared as a result of
the motion accepted at the meeting of the Council on 25 July 2011 is
reviewed by the Children and Young People Overview and Scrutiny
Panel at its meeting of 10 November 201 | prior to its approval by
Cabinet. The review will ensure that targets, actions and milestones
within the plan are SMART, appropriately resourced and prioritised;

the Chair, Vice-Chair, Lead Officer and Democratic Support Officer
to review the work programme for October and November to make
a decision on whether the developmental day should proceed;

the panel to receive the |5 Munro recommendations in full to include
who has responsibility, costings, timescales for monitoring and
evaluation;

the panel receive information on the buy back situation from the
Trading Fair in relation to services procured by Academies at it
meeting in November meeting.

BUDGET AND PERFORMANCE REPORT

The panel received the budget and performance report.

In response to questions raised, it was reported that -

a.

Agreed that —

Children

this report is an extract from the full report submitted to Cabinet and
the Overview and Scrutiny Management Board;

a ‘deep dive’ exercise to be undertaken to address the issues of
Common Assessment Frameworks (CAF’s) not meeting targets;

further savings would not be identified in relation to transport.
Further options were being explored such as using mini buses rather
than taxis;

the panel were informed by Councillor Haydon of Enhanced CRB
Checks for taxi drivers raised at a recent Licensing Committee
(Hackney Carriage) meeting and the changes in the regulations for
taxi drivers.

the Finance Officer, Director of Services for Children and Young
People and the Cabinet Member for Children and Young People to be
invited to attend the next panel meeting;

the panel requested further information on staff reduction, specifically
around the number of vacant posts currently held and number of
posts covered with agency staff;

and Young People Overview and Scrutiny Panel Thursday 8
September 2011



30.

31.

32.

33.

Page 5

3. a request be put forward to the Cabinet Member for Children and
Young People —

that urgent clarification is sought as to whether there will be any
changes in the requirements for Enhanced Criminal Records Bureau
checks on Private Hire or licensed Hackney carriage drivers who may
carry children or vulnerable young people and adults. The panel
requires an assurance that enhanced checks remain in place in this
regard.

ADOPTION INSPECTION RESULT

The panel noted the report.

TASK AND FINISH GROUP

Children's Emotional Wellbeing and Mental Health

The panel noted the PID for the Children Emotional Wellbeing and Mental Health
task and finish group.

Apprenticeships
The panel noted the PID for the Apprenticeship Task and Finish Group.

Agreed that the Democratic Support Officer to check the panel’s availability for the
Apprenticeship Task and Finish Group in November.

Young Carers

Mark Collings, Children’s Fund Programme Manager and Joy Howick, Head of
Service, Children in the Community presented the report to the panel.

In response to questions raised, it was reported that —

a. the number of young carers were not mentioned in the report
because the task and finish group identified that there were a number
of unknown young carers within the city;

b. the Young Carer’s Service was currently out to tender. The aim of
putting the service out to tender is to increase the capacity of the
service and refocus the work to provide a better service;

C. it was important to ensure that young carers had access to services
provided;
d. Adult Social Services Care Plan now includes an assessment of young

people within the home.

Children and Young People Overview and Scrutiny Panel Thursday 8
September 2011



34.

35.

36.

Agreed that —

Page 6

the panel receive a copy of what is being put out to tender including
costings;

the panel be provided with information on the number of Common
Assessment Frameworks (CAFs) undertaken to include who has
responsibility for the on-going delivery of the CAF, school
involvement and how the CAF is used and implemented. The panel
to assess the information received before deciding on whether a
further mini scrutiny should take place.

HOSPITAL SCHOOL

The panel noted the report.

COMMISSION ON SCHOOL LIBRARIES

Sally Walsh, Assistant City Librarian (Schools and Strategy) and Alasdair

MacNaughtan,

City Librarian presented the report to the panel.

In response to questions raised, it was reported that —

a.

two packages were available for schools to choose, standard package
and light package;

Plymouth School Library Service is the most successful both locally
and nationally;

the School Library Service focus on being proactive and undertaking
consultation whilst constantly reviewing the usage of the service;

the School Library Service work very closely with the public library
service and actively advise and encourage schools to visit their public
library;

the two primary schools that withdrew from the Plymouth School
Library were in areas of deprivation.

Agreed that a list of schools that have not subscribed to the Plymouth School Library
to be provided to the panel.

UPDATE FROM PARTNER ORGANISATIONS

Children and Young People's Trust

The panel noted the report.

Children

and Young People Overview and Scrutiny Panel Thursday 8
September 2011



37.

38.

39.

Page 7

Local Safeguarding Children Board

The panel noted the report and raised concern over the NSPCC no longer accepting
referrals for the Young Witness Support Scheme.

Agreed that the panel reinforce the need for the Independent Chairs across the
peninsula to have the matter of the NSPCC giving notice to accept no more referrals
for the Young Witness Support Scheme be drawn to the attention of the respective
Children Trust Boards to explore a way forward.

WORK PROGRAMME

The panel noted the work programme for 201 1/12.

EXEMPT BUSINESS

There were no items of exempt business.

Children and Young People Overview and Scrutiny Panel Thursday 8
September 2011



Page 8

This page is intentionally left blank



TRACKING RESOLUTIONS
Children and Young People Overview and Scrutiny Panel

Date/min | Resolution Explanation / Minute Officer Progress Target Date
number
16.06.11 / Agreed that — The panel considered the | Claire Oatway, | Jenny Evans and Kerry | November 201 |
Min 3 appointment of co-opted | Lead Officer Whittlesea with regret
(1 Jenny Evans and Kerry Whittlesea, representatives. have resigned from
Young Persons Representatives to the CYP OSP because
complete a full year on the Panel with a of school
review to take place at the October commitments.
meeting; Exploring replacement
with Sarah Heffernan.
(2) Kevin Willis, Parent Governor On-going. May 2012
Representative to continue as a
statutory co-opted representative until 10
the end of his term; QD
(3) elections to take place shortly to DSO has met with the | 05.01.11 o}
recruit new Parent Governor elections team and ©
Representatives onto the panel; school governor team
on the election of new
Parent Governors.
Election process
commenced on
12.10.11. Results of &
election 09.12.11. D
4) the Vice-Chair to make contact with The Vice-chair had On-going. B
the Diocese on faith representation on spoken to the Diocese V)
the panel. but was awaiting a él-)T-

response.

g



01 ebed

Date/min | Resolution Explanation / Minute Officer Progress Target Date
number
16.06.11/ Agreed that a further report on University This item was raised Claire Oatway A report to be 10.11.11
Min 5 Technology College to include a detailed under Chair’s Urgent provided to the panel
breakdown of numbers be submitted to the Business at 10.11.11 meeting —
panel in September-. Agenda Item 9.
|4 July 2011/ | Agreed that — The panel received an Report to comeback On-going.
17 l. plans for each of the five themes listed | update from the LSP Wise to the panel at its
in the LSP Wise Theme Group report | Theme Group. rearranged
to come back to the panel on a regular developmental day.
basis;
2. the panel to receive an overview on the
different theme groups and how they fit
together and contribute to the delivery
of the Children and Young People’s
Plan 2011 — 14;
[4 July 2011/ | Agreed that - The panel received an Adult Learning added | 08.09.11
18 l. Adult Learning to be added to the CYP | update from the Assistant to the work
OSP Work Programme; Director for Lifelong programme — this
Learning and the Assistant action is complete.
2. information to be provided on the Director for Learner and Information being On-going.
work undertaken by the Employment Family Support on the provided by the
and Skills Group; priorities and challenges. Plymouth Employment
and Skills Board
3. the panel to receive information on the A further report on 08.09.11

children’s workforce induction
programme undertaken by all staff
working with children and young
people;

children’s workforce
induction programme
is attached to the
tracking resolutions —
this action is
complete.




Date/min | Resolution Explanation / Minute Officer Progress Target Date
number

4. the panel receive a report on the A further report on 08.09.11
uptake of free school meals; uptake on free school

meals is attached to
the tracking
resolutions — this
action is complete.

5. the panel to receive information on A further report on 08.09.11
whether the build and recreation of full production of kitchens
production kitchens in remaining in remaining schools is
primary schools and PRU to end attached to the
transported meals was on track for tracking resolutions —
completion by August 201 I; this action is

complete.

6. further information be provided on Information to be 05.01.12
SEN funding for 2012/13 to the panel in provided to the panel
January 2012. at 05.01.12 meeting.

14 July 2011/ | Agreed that — The panel reviewed the Cabinet Minute 52(1) | 13.09.11
19 l. the Overview and Scrutiny Management | budget and performance Agreed that -

Board be made aware that for scrutiny
panels to be able to monitor Budget
and Performance effectively, corporate
reporting cycles need to facilitate
panels receiving timely reports
containing up to date information;

report.

the Overview and
Scrutiny Management
Board (OSMB)
continues to

receive the full
quarterly Performance
and Finance
Monitoring

Reports and extracts
from the report will
be submitted to City
Council meetings.

1+ ebed




-1 AR 1
obed

Date/min | Resolution Explanation / Minute Officer Progress Target Date
number
2. the Corporate Parenting Group to Report to comeback 10.11.11
provide the panel with an update on to the panel in
children in care to include- November — Agenda
- age profile of children in care; Item 6a.
- time spent in care;
- number of children returning back
into care.
3. further information be provided to the Information to be 05.01.12
panel on the 201 1/12 budget for SEN provided to the panel
transport. at 05.01.12 meeting.
[4 July 2011/ | Agreed that the issues with in-year admissions | The panel were given an Next meeting of the 05.01.12
20 to be highlighted to the School Admissions update on the current in- Schools Forum
Forum. A further report on findings to come | year primary school [4.11.11 — update to
back to the panel and Councillor Mrs Aspinall | admission process. be given to the panel
at a later date. on 05.01.12.
08.09.11/ Agreed that — Progress update on Induction pack to be | 10.11.11
Min 26 previous tracking shared with  panel
l. the panel to be emailed the Childcare | resolutions. members at 10.11.11
Workforce Induction Programme pack; meeting — this action
is complete.
2. the panel receive details on how the Briefing paper | 10.11.11
Childcare Workforce Induction attached to tracking
Programme is funded; resolutions — appendix
l.
3. the panel to receive information on the Briefing paper | 10.11.11

eligibility criteria and the process for
registering for free school meals at its
November panel meeting;

attached to tracking
resolutions — appendix
2.




e1-ebed

Date/min | Resolution Explanation / Minute Officer Progress Target Date
number
4. the panel to look at Child Poverty at its The Child Poverty | 10.11.11
November panel meeting. Action Plan to be
reviewed by the panel
at 10.11.11 meeting.
Agenda item | I.
08.09.11/ Agreed that — The panel received an Recommendation 10.11.11
Min 28 update on the priorities agreed by OSMB but
l. the following recommendation be made | and challenges for not looked at by
to Cabinet at its meeting of 14 children services. Cabinet at its meeting
September 201 | for agreement by on 13.09.11.  Child
Chair and Vice-Chair of Overview and Poverty to be look at
Scrutiny Management Board. by the panel at its
10.11.11 meeting.
The Child Poverty Multi-agency Child Poverty to be
Delivery Plan prepared as a result of looked at by the panel
the motion accepted at the meeting of at 10.11.11 meeting.
the Council on 25 July 201 | is reviewed Agenda Item | 1.
by the Children and Young People
Overview and Scrutiny Panel at its
meeting of 10 November 201 | prior to
its approval by Cabinet. The review will
ensure that targets, actions and
milestones within the plan are SMART,
appropriately resourced and prioritised;
2. the Chair, Vice-Chair, Lead Officer and Claire Oatway The Developmental | On-going

Democratic Support Officer to review
the work programme for October and
November to make a decision on
whether the developmental day should
proceed;

Day scheduled for

13.10.11  postponed
because of 2-day task
on Il and 12.10.11.
This action is

complete.




i71-ebed

Date/min | Resolution Explanation / Minute Officer Progress Target Date
number
3. the panel to receive the |5 Munro Mairead MacNeil Briefing paper | 10.11.11
recommendations in full to include who attached to the
has responsibility, costings, timescales tracking resolutions -
for monitoring and evaluation; appendix 3.
4. the panel to receive information on the Jayne Gorton Chair and Vice Chair | 10.11.11
buy back situation from the Trading Fair will update the panel
in relation to services procured by on this item — agenda
Academies at it meeting in November item |0.
meeting.
08.09.11/ Agreed that — The panel received Claire Oatway The Cabinet Member | 10.11.11
Min 29 information on budget for  Children and
l. the Finance Officer, Director of | and performance. Young People and
Services for Children and Young People Director of Services
and the Cabinet Member for Children for  Children and
and Young People to be invited to Young People and
attend the next panel meeting; Finance Officer have
been invited to attend
the meeting — this
action is complete.
2. the panel requested further Claire Oatway In-progress update to | 10.11.11
information on  staff reduction, be given at the panel

specifically around the number of
vacant posts currently held and number
of posts covered with agency staff;

meeting on 10.11.11.




Date/min | Resolution Explanation / Minute Officer Progress Target Date
number
3. a request be put forward to the Claire Oatway In-progress update to | 10.11.11
Cabinet Member for Children and be given at the panel
Young People — meeting on 10.11.11.
that urgent clarification is sought as to
whether there will be any changes in
the requirements for Enhanced
Criminal Records Bureau checks on
Private Hire or licensed Hackney
carriage drivers who may carry
children or vulnerable young people
and adults. The panel requires an
assurance that enhanced checks remain
in place in this regard. 0
08.09.11/ Agreed that the Democratic Support Officer to | Apprenticeship Task and | Amelia Boulter Email sent to all CYP | 22.11.11 @
Min 32 check the panel’s availability for the Finish Group. OSP  members to ()
Apprenticeship Task and Finish Group in check availability for —
November-. task and finish on o
22.11.11.
08.09.11/ Agreed that — Progress update on the Mark Collings/Joy | Briefing paper | 10.11.11
Min 33 recommendations made Howick attached to the

l. the panel receive a copy of what is
being put out to tender including
costings;

from the Young Carers
Task and Finish Group.

tracking resolutions —
appendix 4.




Date/min | Resolution Explanation / Minute Officer Progress Target Date
number
2. the panel be provided with information Briefing paper | 10.11.11
on the number of Common Assessment attached to the
Frameworks (CAFs) undertaken to tracking resolutions —
include who has responsibility for the appendix 4.
on-going delivery of the CAF, school
involvement and how the CAF is used
and implemented. The panel to assess
the information received before
deciding on whether a further mini
scrutiny should take place.
08.09.11/ Agreed that a list of schools that have not Update on the Sally Walsh Briefing paper | 10.11.11
Min 35 subscribed to the Plymouth School Library to Commission of the School attached to the
be provided to the panel. Library Service. tracking resolutions —
Appendix 5.
08.09.11/ Agreed that the panel reinforce the need for Update from the Local Amelia Boulter Recommendation 10.11.11
Min 37 the Independent Chairs across the peninsula to | Safeguarding Children forwarded to the

have the matter of the NSPCC giving notice to
accept no more referrals for the Young
Witness Support Scheme be drawn to the
attention of the respective Children Trust
Boards to explore a way forward.

Board.

Chair of Plymouth
Local Safeguarding
Children Board. This
action is now

complete.

Al ARp 1
St1-obed




Page 17

CHILDREN AND YOUNG
PEOPLE OVERVIEW &
SCRUTINY PANEL S .

|0 November 201 | CITY COUNCIL

Subject Heading: Children’s Workforce Induction Programme

Funding for the Children’s Workforce Induction Programme:-

For the financial year | 1/12 there is a charge of £120 per delegate for the three day course unless
they are from the voluntary sector and then it is free and the costs are sought from Routeways.
The Children’s Workforce Development Council allocated £20 000 for the engagement in
workforce development of the voluntary sector in Plymouth. The £20k is held by Routeways for
Plymouth and we liaise closely with them in the promotion of the training and ensuring that
sessions are available at varying times of day, eg twilight sessions, weekends. The voluntary sector
selected their priorities for training and the Induction Programme is one of these; the other two
are |) Supervision Skills 2) Safer Recruitment Training.

The first cohort for the Induction programme consisted of || delegates, 2 of which were from the
voluntary sector.

Name of author : Maria Anderson
Job Title & Dept : Teaching and Learning Associate
Date paper written : 18 October 201 |

Version and date Not protectively marked



Page 18

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 19

CHILDREN AND YOUNG
PEOPLE OVERVIEW &
SCRUTINY PANEL S .

|0 November 201 | CITY COUNCIL

Eligibility Criteria for Free School Meals (Resolution 26.3)

The eligibility criteria for free school meals is set within Section 512 of the Education Act 2002.

Free school meals are available for pupils of statutory school age including sixth form pupils
attending a school (but not a college of further education) and also for nursery aged children who
are attending full days.

In order to qualify for free school meals the parent (or guardian) must be in receipt of one of the
following benefits:

. Income Support
. Income Based Job Seekers Allowance
. Support under Part VI of the Immigration and Asylum Act 1999

. Child tax credit only, (not in receipt of working tax credit), and an annual income as
assessed by the Inland Revenue not exceeding £16,190. (Please note - Working Tax Credit
is not a qualifying benefit even if the annual income is below £16,190)

. Guarantee element of State Pension Credit
. Income related Employment and Support Allowance (ESA (IR))

. Working Tax Credit 'Run-On' - Where the claimant has stopped working or their hours
have dropped below 16 hours per week and their Working Tax Credit has ended. This will
grant a four-week entitlement (whilst their new benefit claim is being processed).

. Pupils who receive income support in their own right are also entitled to receive free school
meals.

How to apply for free school meals

. The parent or guardian completes an application form which is available from the child’s
school, or on the PCC website.

. The forms are sent to the free school meals administrator and the details are checked using
a secure government website (ECS checking service) to determine eligibility. The data that is
required to undertake a check using the ESC service is the parent’s National Insurance
number, their date of birth and their surname.

. The data is uploaded on a daily basis to the ECS checking service. The data is processed
overnight and is downloaded the following day. The department is therefore able to offer a
24 hour turnaround time for assessing eligibility.

. The claimant does not need to provide any paper proof of their benefits unless we receive a
‘not found’ return from ECS. Should this happen then the school will request that the
parent provides proof of their entitlement to a qualifying benefit.

Version and date Not protectively marked



Page 20

Future developments

We are currently working with ICT to develop an online application form. A parent (or school)
will be able to complete the form online which will feed directly to the free school meal
administrator. The data will then be uploaded to the ECS system as described above. The parent
and school will be notified by email of their eligibility. Should a parent not have access to a
computer then a paper application form will be accepted or the school could make the application
on their behalf using the online application.

Currently claims are renewed on an annual basis. We are now developing processes whereby the
data we hold centrally is checked more frequently using the ECS service. Using this system a pupil
will stay on free school meals unless we receive a ‘not found’ return from the ECS service. This
means parents will not need to submit an annual renewal form and their will be less administration
for schools. This system will also ensure that only those entitled to receive free schools are
receiving them. Although it is the parent’s responsibility to inform the school if their
circumstances change, many do not, and this is only picked up at the annual renewal time.

Running these checks more frequently will pick up any changes much sooner. Schools will then be
notified on a regular basis which pupils are no longer entitled to free school meals.

Julie Roantree
Principal Transport & Allowances Officer

24 October 201 |



Page 21

CHILDREN AND YOUNG
PEOPLE OVERVIEW &
SCRUTINY PANEL S .

|0 November 201 | CITY COUNCIL

Priorities and Challenges — 15 Munro Recommendations

Professor Munro has carried out a wide-ranging and in-depth review of child protection. As the
review was not commissioned as a result of a particular crisis but on an understanding that,
despite the best intentions, front line practitioners were, too often, not able to make the
difference they wanted to for vulnerable children, as the system they worked within was unhelpful.
Her report makes fifteen recommendations and signals a shift from previous reforms, with a new
focus on reducing regulation and prescription to enable the child to be at the centre of the system.

Taken together, Professor Munro’s recommendations represent a system-wide response to
reforming the child protection system. This report sets out the Government’s response and our
own preparations to each of Professor Munro’s |5 recommendations. Central government is
consulting widely on the implementation of the recommendations and notes that :

“This response is not a one — off set of recommended solutions to be imposed from the centre.
Rather it is the start of a shift in mindset and relationship between central Governments, local
agencies and front line professionals working in partnership. Change will evolve and best practice
will be informed by experience, innovation and evidence.”

Tim Loughton. Parliamentary Under Secretary of State for Children and Families.
July 201 1.

Maureen Grimley
Safeguarding Manager - Children’s Social Care
19" October 201 |

Version and date Not protectively marked



Page 22

Munro Government Response Timescale Plymouth Monitoring

Recommendation and Evaluation

The Government Accepted Awaiting the update of

should revise both Working Together to

the statutory I )The government will make full Safeguard Children which is
1) By July 2012 due out for consultation in

guidance Working
Together to
Safeguard Children
and The Framework
for the Assessment
of Children in Need
and their Families.

revision of Working Together to
Safeguard Children and The
Framework for the Assessment of
Children in Need and their
Families.

2) The government will
implement an interim amendment
to Working Together to
Safeguard Children to remove
assessment deadlines and the
distinction between initial and
core assessments.

2) By December
2011

December 2012. Until the
full revisions are published
Plymouth Children’s Social
Care will continue to work
to the guidance set out in
existing guidance.

The inspection
framework should

Accepted

Awaiting developments and
further information from

examine the Ofsted intends to have a new By May 2012 Ofsted.

effectiveness of the | local authority inspection

contributions of all | framework in place, following a

local services, consultation in July 201 1. The

including health, timescale for implementation is

education, police, May 2012

probation and the

justice system to

the protection of

children.,

The new inspection | Accepted Awaiting developments and
framework should further information from
examine the child’s | Ofsted intends to have a new By May 2012 Ofsted.

journey from
needing to receiving
help, explore how
the rights, wishes,
feelings and
experiences of
children and young
people inform and
shape the provision
of services, and look
at the effectiveness
of the help provided
to children, young
people and their
families.

local authority inspection
framework in place, following a
consultation in July 201 1. The
timescale for implementation is
May 2012

Local authorities
ande their partners
should use a
combination of
nationally collected
and locally published
performance
information to help
benchmark
performance,

Accepted

| ) The government will confirm
what will be on the list of locally
published performance
information.

2) The government is aiming for
publication of the suite of new
nationally collected performance
information.

I) By December
2011

2) By May 2012

Awaiting publications.




Page 23

Munro Government Response Timescale Plymouth Monitoring
Recommendation and Evaluation
facilitate

improvement and

promote

accountability.

The existing Accepted Awaiting the passing of
statutory As soon as legislation, however
requirements for The government will identify the | practicable Plymouth Safeguarding
each Local appropriate legislative vehicle. Children Board, produce

Safeguarding
Children Board to
produce and publish
an annual report for
the Children’s Trust
Board should be
amended, to require
its submission
instead to the Chief
Executive and the
Leader of the
Council, and subject
to the passage of
legislation, to the
local Police and
Crime
Commissioner and
the Chair of the
health and well
being board.

an annual report which is
submitted to the Children’s
trust and Leader of the
Council. Once legislation is
passed it is immediately
achievable to submit this
annual report to the local
Police and Crime
Commissioner and the
Chair of the health and
wellbeing board.

The statutory
guidance, Working
Together to
Safeguard Children,
should be amended
to state that when
monitoring and
evaluating local
arrangements,
LSCB’s should,
taking account of
local need, include
an assessment of
the effectiveness of
the help being
provided to children
and families,.. . and
the effectiveness of
multi agency training
to safeguard and
promote the
welfare of children
and young people.

Accepted in principle

The government will publish an
amendment to Working Together
to Safeguard Children regarding

the role of local safeguarding

children boards in monitoring
effectiveness of early help and

protective services.

By December 201 |

Awaiting the update of
Working Together to
Safeguard Children which is
due out for consultation in
December 2012. It is in this
Statutory Guidance that
the role of Local
Safeguarding Boards will be
published.

Local authorities
should give due

Accepted in principle

By autumn 201 |

A consultation which seeks
views on revised statutory

consideration to
protecting the
discrete roles and
responsibilities of a

The government will continue
working with the sector on how
to revise the statutory guidance
on the role of DCS and the Lead

guidance for local
authorities on the roles
and responsibilities of the
DCS and LMCS is currently




Page 24

Munro Government Response Timescale Plymouth Monitoring
Recommendation and Evaluation
Director of Member and will consult formally taking place and closes on
Children’s Services | on the guidance in autumn 201 I. Friday 6t January 2012.
and Lead Members Policy, Performance and
for children’s Partnerships Team are
services before currently undertaking a
allocating additional review of the statutory
functions to guidance.

individuals

occupying such Following consultation, the
roles. The guidance will be revised
importance as and will replace the version
envisaged by the issued in 2009.

Children Act 2004
of appointing
individuals to
positions where
they have specific
responsibilities for
children’s services
should not be
undermined The
government should
amend the statutory
guidance issued in
relation to such
roles and establish
the principle that,
given the
importance of
individuals in senior
positions being
responsible for
children’s services,
it should not be
considered
appropriate to give
additional functions
to DCS and Lead
Members unless

exceptional

circumstances arise.

The Government Accepted in principle Await publication of Joint
should work working programme.
collaboratively with | The Department of Health and By September 201 |

the Royal College of | the Department for Education The Policy, Performance
Paediatrics and will work with NHS bodies, local and Partnerships Team will
Child Health, the authorities, professional bodies continue to respond to
Royal College of and practitioners to publish a consultations when
General joint programme of work. required and where
Practitioners, local applicable.

authorities and
others to research
the impact of health
reorganization on
effective partnership
arrangements and
the ability to




Page 25

Munro
Recommendation

Government Response

Timescale

Plymouth Monitoring
and Evaluation

provide effective
help for children
who are suffering,
or likely to suffer,
significant harm.

The Government
should require
LSCPB’s to use
systems
methodology when
undertaking Serious
Case Reviews and,
over the coming
year, work with the
sector to develop
national resources
to:

Provide accredited,
skilled and
independent
reviewers to jointly
work with LSCB’s
on each SCR
Promote the
development of a
variety of systems-
based
methodologies to
learn from practice
Initiate the
development of a
typology of the
problems that
contribute to
adverse outcomes
to facilitate national
learning
Disseminate
learning nationally
to improve practice
and inform the
work of the Chief
Social Worker.

In the meantime
Ofted’s evaluation
of SCR’s should
end.

Further consideration
needed

During the second half of 201 |
the Government will, working
with the sector, consider the
evidence and opportunities for
using systems review
methodologies for SCR’s and the
opetions for developing the
national resources Professor
Munro recommends.

Further consideration will be
given over the summer to ending
the evaluation of SCR’s in their
current form.

Second half of
summer 201 |

The ‘Systems Model’ is
currently being piloted in
some other authorities
regionally and we are
keeping a watching brief
over how this is working.
The Executive of the
Plymouth Safeguarding
Children’s Board (PSCB)
has received a presentation
on the Systems Model and
PSCB will ensure senior
staff are sufficiently trained
to undertake the ‘Systems
Model’ when it is rolled
out.




Page 26

The Government
should place a duty
on local authorities
and statutory
partners to secure
the sufficient
provision of local
early help services
for children, young
people and families.
The arrangements
setting out how
they will do this
should:

Specify the range of
professional help
available to local
children, young
people and families,
through statutory,
voluntary and
community services,
against the profile of
need set out in the
local Joint Strategic
Needs assessment
Specify how they
will identify children
suffering, or likely to
suffer significant
harm, including the
availability of social
work expertise to
all professionals
working with
children and families
who are not being
supported by
children’s social
care professionals..
Set out the local
resourcing of the
early help services
Lead to the
identification of
early help that is
needed by a
particular child and
family.

Accepted in principle

The government will work with
partners to identify the
appropriate route to effect the
responsibility for the provision of
early help.

Guidance of the Joint Strategic
Needs assessment will be
published.

New inspection framework from
May 2012

By September 201 |

Awaiting further
government response.

Services for Children and
Young People will continue
to develop the localities
way of working, with multi
agency teams, to deliver
early help and develop
further the role and
capacity of Common
Assessment Framework
coordinators within
localities. Localities will
have qualified social
workers to offer expertise
to other professionals.

All workers delivering
services to children and
families have access to
Plymouth Safeguarding
Board training in order that
they can identify children
suffering, or are at risk of
suffering, significant harm.

The Social Work
Reform Board's
professional
capabilities
framework should
specify those
qualities needed for
child and family
social work.

Accepted

The Social Work Reform Board
(SWRB) has already developed
the Professional Capabilities
Framework and is in the process
of populating the various levels
and capabilities. It is also
developing and associated CPD

By autumn 2012

Awaiting further
developments nationally.




Page 27

framework. Ownership of both is
expected to transfer to the
College of Social Work by

November 201 I.

12 | Employers and Accepted I) By December Awaiting further
Higher Education 2012 developments nationally.
Institutes The Government will work with
(HElshould work | amployers and HEI's to build
together so that partnership arrangements with
social work the aim of having these in place by
students are the end of 2012
prepared for the The College of Social Work will
challenges of child | develop plans for designated 2) By summer 2012
protection work. approved practice settings and

teaching organisation status.

13 | Local authorities Accepted Waiting for further
and their partners response from central
should start an Local leaders will undertake self- government as they work
ongoing process to | assessment, considering whether | At a locally with Children’s
review and redesign | child and family social work determined pace Improvement Board to
the ways in which services are appropriately develop remodeling tools.
child and family configured so that they meet the Children’s Social Care
social work is needs of children and families Management away day
delivered, drawing (Nov 201 1) is looking at
on effectiveness of five Munro pilots as a start
helping methods to self evaluation and self
where appropriate assessment.
and supporting
practice that can
implement evidence
based ways of
working with
children and
families.

14 | Local authorities Accepted This will appear in the
should designate a Children’s Social Care
principal child and I ) The government expects most 1) By April 2012 forward plan in due course.
family social local authorities to have chosen
worker, who is a to designate a principal child and
senior manager family social worker-.
with lead
responsibility for 2) The government expects that
practice in the local | all local authorities "will have
authority and who | chosen" to designate a principal 2) By July 2012
is still actively child and family social worker.
involved in front
line practice and
who can report the
views and
experiences of the
front line to all
levels of
management.

I5 | A Chief Social Accepted in principle Awaiting further
Worker should be developments nationally.
created in The government plans for a chief | By late 2012
government social worker to oversee

children's and adults' services to
be implemented by late 201 2.




Page 28



Page 29

CHILDREN AND YOUNG
PEOPLE OVERVIEW &
SCRUTINY PANEL S .

|0 November 201 | CITY COUNCIL

Supplementary Information — Young Carers

Young Carers and Adult Services

The Young Carers Steering Group is governed and reports to the Carers Strategic Partnership,
which is chaired by Pam Marsden, Assistant Director for Adult Health and Social Care.

In order to strengthen the ability of services for adults to identify young carers, the following
actions are in place:

Agencies such as Harbour, Adult Social Care, Children and Disabilities Services (Parent
Carers), are now full members on the Young Carers Steering Group.

Operational links between Adult and Children Social Care have been improved to ensure
that systems are designed to facilitate and support easier processes and joined up working
between all agencies. This includes the co-ordination between the relevant commissioning
managers in Adults, Health and Children Services for Children and Young People.

This has resulted in several new initiatives such as:

Memorandum of Understanding — builds positive joint work that takes place and sets
out a shared understanding of the issues. This is based on a shared set of aims about how
we can deliver better integrated support for families to ensure better protection from
harm and improved outcomes for young carers. The aim is to prevent and protect
children and young people from undertaking excessive and inappropriate caring roles.

Electronic Referral Form- by using the social care system (CareFirst) the referral
process will give direct links to the Adult Client file, thereby enabling professionals to easily
check on the adult’s care plan, to ensure young carers have not taken on inappropriate
caring responsibilities, such as bathing. This will reduce the number of times that families
have to explain their circumstances.

Map of Medicines- this is a diagnosis tool used by health professionals, particularly GPs
to assist in diagnosis, treating and support, for all types of medical conditions.

This tool now includes triggers specifically designed to alert GPs to check for the presence
of young carers. In the event that a young carer is identified, the tool then provides a
series of pathways and the current up to date, local resources, all of which can be
downloaded and shared by the GP with their patient.

E-Learning Package — Young carers and their needs will feature in this learning tool,
including clear steps for practitioners to follow in their professional role to support and
protect young carers. It will be part of adult social care workers professional development
to undertake this training.

Version | Not protectively marked



Page 30

Use of the Common Assessment Framework

The common assessment framework (CAF) enables practitioners from all agencies including the
voluntary sector to work together with families to assess, identify and meet the needs of children
and young people. The CAF process enables targeted multi-agency packages of support to be
tailored to the needs of individuals; because it is a process that is completed in partnership with
the family and with consent to share the information appropriately, it reduces the number of times
a family has to repeat information. It also reduces repetition and cross over between agencies
providing support as the team around the family will work to an agreed plan.

e Any practitioner working with a family can start the process. Once they have initiated the
CAF they are able to invite other agencies to support the family and share information
about existing support. Over 4000 practitioners across the city have been trained to use
the CAF process.

e Once information sharing starts, underlying issues that may not have been previously
shared, often come to the surface. This is particularly relevant for young carers as the
issues that often present themselves are a result of them taking on a caring role within the
family. The CAF is often called because of symptoms e.g. behaviour or attendance; the
process ensures the cause, such as being a young carer, is discovered and addressed.

e The CAF process ensures identification of these concerns and offers support tailored to
the needs of the individual young person. As the CAF is an organic process the packages
of support can be adapted as the needs of the young person change.

e The CAF process is now the primary method of identifying the unmet needs of young
carers within the city.

e The CAF also provides a central register of all young carers within Plymouth; ensuring
services are better able to support them as they move between settings, change schools or
leave children’s services and transition into adulthood.

e The CAF manager has developed a relationship with adult services to support them with
the common assessment framework and the team are allocating link CAF Officers to adult
drug and alcohol services, the Probation service and Adult Social Care. This will raise the
profile of multi agency working to support the children in the families they work with -
identifying young carers in these households.

Common Assessment Framework and Young Carer Statistics

e October 2009 to September 2010
593 CAFs were initiated relating to 459 Families
46% (271) were on school age children and young people
35% (209) were initiated by health services
38% (229) were initiated by education — this equates to 84% of the school age CAFs
27% (155) were initiated by other services

e October 2010 to September 2011
717 CAFs were initiated relating to 567 Families
e 2|% increase in number of CAFs on previous year
e 23.5% increase in number of Families
41% (294) were on school age children and young people
29% (215) were initiated by health services
29% (214) were initiated by education — this equates to 73% of the school age CAFs
42% (294) were initiated by other services



Page 31

e CAF analysis
A recent sample of 6 month CAFs identified 67 young people with caring responsibilities receiving

multi-agency responses, out a total 367 CAFs.

CAFs are initiated primarily because of issues such as non-school attendance, behaviour, anti-social
behaviour not because the young person is a carer.

Reason for initiating CAF Number % age of
(sample) all CAFs
Low self esteem 14 4
Non school attendance 58 16
Behaviour at school 40 Il
Anti-social behaviour 60 16
Young Carer 6 2

The CAF is effective at identifying these children and young people as caring roles and reasons

Caring reason Number % age of
all CAFs
Parental Disability 6 2
Parental Learning Disability 4 |
Parental Mental Health 30 8
Parental Substance Misuse 21 5
Other reason 6 2
Total 67 18

Potentially 61 young carers have been identified through multiagency working that would have
struggled unrecognised without the CAF response.

Joy Howick
Head of Children Services — Children in the Community — Services for Children and Young People

26 October 201 |



Page 32

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 33

SCHOOLS LIBRARY SERVICE

Chaucer Way, Manadon, Plymouth PL5 3E

T 01752780713  E sls@plymouth.gov.uk  www.plymouth.gov.uk/sls PLI&&EJH

Further information for Children and Young People Overview and Scrutiny Panel - Sept.
2011

SCHOOLS WHO DO NOT SUBSCRIBE TO PLYMOUTH SCHOOLS
LIBRARY SERVICE

School Year subscription withdrawn
Devonport High for Boys 2007

Devonport High for Girls 2007

Downham School 2010

Ernesettle Primary 2011

Hooe Primary 2009

The Hospital School Pre Plymouth Unitary status
Manadon Vale 2010

Mount Tamar School 2010

Oreston Primary 2007

Plymouth High for Girls 2008

Plympton St. Mary 2010

Plymstock School 2005

Riverside Primary 2011

Salisbury Road Primary 2010

Widewell Primary 2009

Widey Court School 2010

Woodfield 2006

Woodford Primary 2008 (Infants) 2009 (Junior)




Page 34

LIGHT PACKAGE SCHOOLS AND STATUS OF CONTRACT

| YEAR

YEAR |
(of 3 years)

YEAR 2
(of 3 years)

Austin Farm Community Primary School

Beechwood Primary School

Chaddlewood Primary

College Road Primary School

DUNSTONE PRIMARY SCHOOL

Leigham Primary School

| (2 year contract)

Mary Dean's Primary School

Mayflower

Montpelier Primary School

Oakwood Primary School

Pilgrim Primary School

Plymouth Prince Rock Primary

Plymouth Stuart Road P School

Plympton St. Maurice P School

St Georges C of E Primary School

St. Edward's Church Primary School

St.Budeaux Foundation CEVA |nr

Thornbury

Victoria Road Primary School

Weston Mill School

Woodlands School

| (2 year contract)

Coombe Dean School

Eggbuckland Community College




Page 35
VITAL STATISTICS
MAY 201 |

Our customers (2011-2012)
Plymouth Local Authority schools:
58 out of 69 primary

|2 out of |16 secondary

5 out of 8 special

Total 75 out of 93 schools

Other paying customers:

Sir Robert Geffery’s, Cornwall

We provide a service to 81% of Plymouth schools

Of those schools, 77% are primary, 16% secondary and 7% special

Stock audit (April 2011)
67,764 books held in the Centre
74,518 books out on long term loan (deposit) in schools

21,860 books out on loan in topics

164,142 total stock

Stock movement 2010-201 |

19,162 books sent out to schools annually to update the deposit collection
65,187 books sent out to schools annually in topic collections

25,182 books purchased

3,188 books sold to our customers

33% of budget spent on resources

Advisory work 2010-201 |

Advisory visits made to 50% of our schools
3 training events

Secondary school support meetings

Quick query help line



SERVICE ENTITLEMENT FROM THE STANDARD AND LIGHT PACKAGE

Page 36

Description Standard Package | Light Package — Light Package —
Topics Advisory and topics
Deposit 2 books per pupil (4 |2 books per pupil (4 |2 books per pupil (4 for
for special schools) for special schools) |special schools)
Exchange 40% of deposit per 40% of deposit per | 40% of deposit per annum
annum annum
Topics 2 per class per term | per class per term || per class per year

(Primary)

Up to 30 per term
(Secondary)

(Primary)
Up to |5 per term

(Secondary)

(Primary)
None (Secondary)

Individual Loans

(Specialist resources)

Up to 25 items per
class at any one time

None

None

Bookshop 5% discount I5% discount I5% discount
Advisory [.5 days per year None 3 days per year
Support with Yes No Yes

Recruitment

INSET

-15-25% discount

- 2 free Librarian’s
Network INSET

10 — 15% discount

- 10 = 15% discount

- | free Librarian’s
Network INSET

(Secondary) (Secondary)

School Library Yes Yes Yes
Handbook

Quick query help-line |Yes Yes Yes
Consultation Yes Yes Yes

School based INSET | Yes No No

training

Computer catalogue |Yes Yes Yes
records

Advice by telephone, |Yes Yes Yes

email and through our
website




CHARGES 2012

Page 37

Primary and special Schools subscription (Charges are per pupil per annum)

Contract | year 2 year commitment 3 year commitment

Standard | £23.25 £22.39 £21.50

Package  Max £11,690 Max. £11,260 Max. £10,444

Light £15.50 £14.93 £14.33

Package  Max £7,800 Max. £7,510 Max. £6,970

Pay-as-you-use options

= Available as an add-on to either of our packages.

= Three year subscribers to either the standard or light package receive a 10% discount on all these

options.

Topic boxes
1 collection

3 collections
5 collections
7 collections
8+ collections

Advisory and Practical Support

Advisory

Full day (6 hours)
Half day (3 hours)
Practical support
Full day (6 hours)
Half day (3 hours)

Training event / workshop facilitation

Twilight session (1.5 hours)
Half day (3 hours)
Full day (6 hours)

Library Loans (Book leasing)

£52 per term
£150 per term
£250 per term
£342 per term
£47 each

£250
£175

£175
£100

£200
£300
£500

Minimum contract of 300 books per annum (100 per term)  £3.20 per book



Page 38

Secondary schools subscription (Charges are per pupil per annum)

Contract | year 2 year 3 year commitment
commitment
Standard £8.57 £8.25 £7.93
Package Max. Max. £11,940 Max. £11,247
£12,400
Light Package £5.72 £5.51 £5.29
Max. Max. £8,000 Max. £7,677
£8,300

Pay-as-you-use options

- Available as an add-on to either of our packages.
- Three year subscribers to either the standard or light package receive a 10% discount on all these
options.

Topic boxes
| collection

3 collections
5 collections
7 collections

8+ collections

Advisory and Practical Support
Advisory

Full day (6 hours)

Half day (3 hours)

Practical support

Full day (6 hours)

Half day (3 hours)

Training event / workshop facilitation
Twilight session (1.5 hours)

Half day (3 hours)

Full day (6 hours)

Library Loans (Book leasing)

Minimum contract of 300 books per annum (100 per term)

£52 per term
£150 per term
£250 per term
£342 per term
£47 each

£250
£175

£175

£100

£200
£300
£500

£3.20 per book



Page 39 Agenda ltem 6a

CHILDREN AND YOUNG
PEOPLE OVERVIEW &
SCRUTINY PANEL S .

|0 November 201 | CITY COUNCIL

Corporate Parenting Group Update

Independent foster placement costings/recruitment of foster carers

Plymouth Fostercare had a four day Ofsted inspection that ended on 29" September 201 1. The
inspectors gave extremely favourable feedback on both the quality of the service and outcomes
achieved for children in foster care in Plymouth. The actual Ofsted rating is currently embargoed
pending receipt of a final confirmation letter.

Plymouth Fostercare currently has 153 fostering households. Recruitment of foster carers is very
strong with 23 assessments of prospective carers underway and 3 sets of assessed carers currently
working in the independent sector due to move to Plymouth Fostercare in the near future. It is
anticipated that a further 22 fostering households will join the service by 31* March 2012 offering
28 new foster care beds. This will result in a reduced dependency on independent sector foster
care placements, with an associated cost reduction; although at this stage it is difficult to predict
actual numbers given that this is dependent on a number of factors such as Court proceedings and
the fact that many of these children have very complex needs.

The average weekly cost of an independent sector foster care placement is £818. The projected
overall spend on independent foster care this financial year is £2.6m.

Children in Care numbers and profiles
Please see attached breakdown.

The discrepancy in numbers of children in care identified at the July Overview and Scrutiny Panel,
between the budget and performance report and the fostering papers related to the fact that the
fostering paper numbers included figures for children’s respite placements and also young people
in supportive lodging placements.

David Simpkins
Head of Service, Children and Young People in Care
Services for Children and Young People

19.10.11

Version and date Not protectively marked



Page 40

This page is intentionally left blank



CYPP Scrutiny — Children in Caré B@8k&dwn 18/10/2011.

As at the end of September 2011 there were 386 children in care.
Approximately 70% of children in care have been taken into care on a single
occasion only, 30% have previously been accommodated and following
cessation of care have subsequently returned.

2009/10 | 2010/11 | Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep
Monthly 2010/11 437 376 436 441 447 451 435 433
Monthly 2011/12 377 384 386 387 386 386
Children in Care numbers have remained relatively consistent since April
2011.
Children In Care (Act.Numbers)
500
450 |
400 |
350
300
250
200
150 -
100 -
50 -
0 T T T T T T
2007/8 2008/92009/1®@010/11 Apr May  Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar
‘ O Monthly 2010/11 @ Monthly 2011/12 ‘
Rates of children in care (per 10,000 of 0-17 population) are consistent with
comparators but higher than England average.
Rate of children looked after per 10,000 population 0-17
2004/5 | 2005/6 | 2006/7 | 2007/8 | 2008/9 | 2009/10 | 2010/11
Plymouth 99.0 82.7 77.5 73.5 77.3 87.9 75.7
SN Comparator 69.5 66.1 68.0 66.0 70.3 73.0 74.5
England 55.1 54.6 54.6 54 .1 55.0 58.0 59.0

Rate of Children Looked After per 10,000 population 0-17
2010/11

Sheffield

7 7k

O

Isle Of Wight
Bournemouth
Rotherham

Telford and Wrekin

Plymouth

7777/7Z//7/7/7/;/’///7//7//7/77/;’’’

Southend-on-Sea
Peterborough

Portsmouth

Torbay

Southampton

D77Z777/77/77//7//7/7/7/77/7/7//77/7%

0

10 20

30

40

50

60

70

80

90

100




Admission and Discharge Breﬂ(@gﬁnflz

Admissions (April to Date)

Discharges (1st April to date)

Total

Age and Gender breakdown as at 17™" October 2011

Over 50% of children in care are 11+

Age |Female | Male | Total
0 14 14 28
1 14 15 29
2 5 5 10
3 10 12 22
4 4 7 11
5 5 6 11 111 (28.5%)
6 6 5 11
7 7 8 15
8 6 8 14
9 4 9 13
10 8 12 20 84 (21.5%)
11 12 7 19
12 7 15 22
13 9 13 22
14 19 16 35
15 14 19 33 | 131(33.6%)
16 17 19 36
17 11 28 39 75 (19.2%)
Total 173 218 390

Age Total Age
0 26 0 3
1 8 1 6
2 7 2 8
3 8 3 6
4 3 4 2
5 7 52 (58.4%) S 2 | 27(31.4%)
6 4 6 3
7 4 7 2
8 1 8 1
9 1 9 1
10 2 19 (18.8%) 10 2 | 11(12.8%)
11 2 11 1
14 6 13 3
15 2 10 (9.9%) 14 2
16 11 15 2 8 (9.3%)
17 9 20 19.8%) 16 4
Total 101 17 4
18 34 | 42 (48.8%)
Total 86



Page 43

More than 80% of Children in care have been in care for more than 1 year,
nearly 30% have been in care for 5 years.

Time Band Total %

4 weeks or less 16 4.1%
Between 27 weeks and 52 weeks 47 12.1%
Between 1 year and 2 years 87 | 22.3%
Between 2 years and 3 years 36 9.2%
Between 3 years and 4 years 20 5.1%
Between 4 years and 5 years 15 3.8%
Between 5 weeks and 26 weeks 58 14.9%
More than 5 years 111 | 28.5%
Grand Total 390 | 100.0%




Page 44

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 45 Agenda ltem 6b

UPDATE FROM CHILDREN AND
YOUNG PEOPLE’'STRUST:CYPP 201 1-
14 OVERVIEW PLYMOUTH

CITY COUNCIL

Children and Young People’s Scrutiny Panel

INTRODUCTION

Over the last six months the agenda has continued to be dominated by structural and policy
changes that are having a major impact on constituent partners of the Children and Young
People’s Trust such as changes to schools finance, the reorganisation of Devon and Cornwall
Police, the creation of the new cluster arrangements for NHS commissioning and the introduction
of Plymouth Community Healthcare Community Interest Company. This level of scrutiny and
understanding has been vital in maintaining a high quality of support to children and young people
across the City and will continue to be a focus for months to come.

Other areas of focus include:

- Prevalence of Chlamydia and Chlamydia screening

- Community Budgets

. Young Witness Scheme

. Mental Health and Wellbeing

. British Arts Show 7 — supporting young people’s takeover sessions
. Young Carers

. Childhood Mortality Rates

. Plymouth 2020 Overview

PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT

This paper however centres on the continued development of the Children and Young People’s
Plan 201 1-14. Action plans (attached) supporting the strategy have been developed and endorsed
by the Trust Board. Performance management arrangements are being fine tuned to support the
development of the plan but will promote the adoption of citywide Priority One and Two
indicators including:

. NI 075 Achievement of 5 or more A*-C grades at GCSE or equivalent incl Maths & English
. NI 117 16-18 year olds not in education, employment or training

- NI 80 Achievement of a Level 3 qualification by the age of 19

- NI 112 Under 18 conception rate

- NI 116 Reduce Child Poverty

. Reduce the gap in attainment at Key Stage 4 between the most and least deprived localities
in the city
. NI 53 Prevalence of Breast feeding

Version | 28" October 201 | Not protectively marked



Page 46

. NI 64 Child Protection Plans lasting 2 or more years

. To decrease the rate of childhood obesity in Year 6 children by 10% by 2020 (based on
2019/20 data) from the 2010 basline (based on 2009/10 data)

. Reduce the gap in vulnerable families by at least 50% between the fifth most and fifth least
deprived neighbourhoods by 2020 from the 2010 baseline.

COSTING THE PLAN

Whilst the Children and Young People’s Trust is able to articulate the overall contributions that
key agencies make to support the plan work is still ongoing to develop full costings of the
supporting priorities. This is being developed as part of a commissioning intentions document that
supports the Plan. To date, detailed work has been done by the local authority to understand the
contribution of departments but the granularity of detail is still being prepared by partner agencies
including NHS Plymouth and Devon and Cornwall Police.

COMMUNICATION

The new plan and contents are being promoted across the City including via children and young
people’s participation groups.

Author
Claire Oatway

Policy, Performance and Partnerships Manager



Page 47

A333e08
uonedidnJey ¢ |

A93yea3s uonedidnied

- | 498uig suuy| 031 pavjul| uonode - 33y uoneddnied 9yl AsieY ||
S9)BIDOSSY
7107 Y2I' W3LS| sjooyss Auewiag ul uonesnpa pajejad Jaa4ed
u1 3|qejieAe swwea3oud paysiqnd y| jooyds Auewiid| 340ddns 03 saniAnde jo swwed3oid B apiAoad €]
sdiysaonuauadde ojui syuswaded
0] JO wnwiuiw & pauJnl pue siakojdwa {A31j1qesIp & yam asoys se yons ajdoad 3unok
Aauig
YaMm (s133N) Suturea] Jo uswioljdwy 9|qesaulna Suipnjpul 3jdoad 3unoL Aojdwsa o3
of / diysusuluey ‘spjo JeaAk g |
uonednp3 ui 3ou 3jdoad Sunok Si8sreng| PUSPYUOD PUE S||Dfs ‘98pajmou| ays aAey Aayy
’ - ¥| 9|qeJ2u|nA
05 pade|d dArY ||IM M ‘T[0T MY 35| 4Q|6-p| JoBuis aruuy| FBY OS $35LIAIIUS WINIPIW/|[BLIS LIM HIOAA T']'| pi el |
dnoug|  Joj Ajedadss
away | JISIA| ‘suahojdwa yam
dupssounrey ‘(aan) Aoy 4o Ajigesiq Suiuaea yam - diysuauraeg| saniuniuoddo
| 107 4oqwiaadag >18032.13 9|doad 8unoA uoy 3ujuiea | pue 3uswiojdws 0207 Juswadedus
Aq sadexoed ovjodsaq uo A 01| g|-p| 408uis auy|  J9s paasoddns jo sadexded aodsaq dojpasg ||| yanowA|d asiwixel ||
s2u03s9|I| KoY qury uondy peo aAn23Iqo

400}y uljod

‘Pooyijnpe 03 uolijisue.d) |[njssa3dns

® jew 03 sapiunjioddo pue adpamow] ‘s|ipjs Y3m ajdoad Suno/ dinbg

| A31i014g

ueld ARAIRA #1 - 1107 ddAD




Page 48

‘yanow|d Joj epuade diysanauaudauyua dno.o
paEOg UsWIESEUEW pue Ajiqedojdws ayy aowoud ‘dnoud awaY ] ISIA ‘a1doad
340ddns pue diysaosuods ul sassauisnq Jo| dg3.L 3eaes apjoef dWRY2 JSIAA 342 y3nouys ‘susurred YUAA TE|| - diysisuaaeg| SunoA Suowre
340ddns aAnoe/s199(oud jJo Jaquinu/paeme dnous 35IM ‘pJeMYy ssauisng 020t/ siis astudaayua
ay3 Joj paiywgns s323fouad jo Ayend 0SNHI Ayaey) sjooyds yanowA|d paJosuods e dojpasg |'€’| yanowA|d adednoduy ¢°|
‘sdnous
diysJaulaey
sSsveng|  PRI-1039s 91eAlud pue djqnd jo diysaaquiaw
61-1 Ja8uIg auuy ysnoya uayo diysadnuaidde ayy aowoudd 7|
‘8191
dugs ouney pagde aopuaidde 3unoL e SuiLojdws jo siyouaq
si3o1eg ay3 uo suakojdwa yinowA|d Aq suakojdws
61-71 J98uis aiuuy| YanowA|q Joj sjesrew Adignd o) dojpasg €|
‘diysaonnuauadde
diysaaulaey
v1/€1 Ul 6201 siBereng ue ojuo ssaudoud 03 us139q 9|doad
E1/TI U 696 | ¢ |-1| 408uig aluuy 3unoA sdinbs sJusyo |euonedoA eyl aunsuz 7| dno.ug *ajdoad
TI/11 U606 SwRY L ISIM 3unoA .oy
[1/0] Ul 648 o diysaounieg 4| Jo 93e ay3 wouy Apead diysaonuauadde - diysaauluey| sdiysaonuaaddy
:03 asu ||im diysadnuaudde ue SunJels . si801e1g 99 01 wayl wouy paJinbau si 3eym 00T Ajpenb
81-9| pade s|doad Bunoy jo Jaquinu Y] | ¢ -4 4a8uig aluuy Jo aueMme aJow 3q 03 9|doad Sunoh s|qeuy || yinowA|d| ysiydopasq T'|




Page 49

“Z107 Ul 9IAISS B3 J9pud) O

pue ‘syeal ¢
10} ISOAA YINOS SJ934eD) Yaim 3uidesiuod
0] UOISU9IXd 33 I12UIged BIA 99438 O]

‘SpJemuo 7 |(0g 40} 398pnq Jes)d € 19§

(INOY) “03e21pU|
133N jo sy, & jo 3uswdojpasg

dnouo

Suluoissiwwo’)

*S93UBYD JUSWIUIDAOL) [BUOHEN YIIM
aul| ul pue s393Je3 pPUB SSWODINO JBI|D YIIM

‘133N 3soys pue sdnou3 s|qeJaujnA uo sndoy

® LIM T |07 PUo4aq (Dy]) 9dueping pue

B|NSujuay
Sulwa|4 euoly|  9JIAPY UOIBWLIOMU| UOISSILUWOD 01 SNUIUOD) T |
diysaauiied
21891808 6| {S9DIAJISS Pa.Oo|Ie) 49139q dplaoad 03 JapJao
- #1 2eg uyof|  ur 133N JO sl JO SIUBUILIAISBP Y3 AYIUSP| ||

dnoun
swiay] 3ISIM
- diysuauluey

020¢
yanowA|d

‘133N 3uidq
03 3|qeJauU|nA
9|doad SunoA

Joy AjaenonJed
‘sadloyd
paw.oyul
ew 03
paioddns aJe
9|doad Suno A

2Jnsus 01 Hy|

uoissiuwo) 47|




Page 50

‘Bujuaes)

[euones|ued.uo wJojul 0) 3Jed [BIDOS 3|Npe
03 uonisue.) J1dvYl Yysnouyl paJoliuow
aJe 9|doad 3uno ) pue uaip|iyD pa|qesiq
;s393pnq

[eUOSJd PasI[eNpIAIpU|, Ul paule.)

aJe sa9/o|dwa aJeD) [BID0S JUBAJ|DY
“ISNJ ] YIBSH [B207] PUE 3JBD) [BID0S
S,US.Ip|IyD PUE S|Py Aq yo pausis

s1 Aem yaed uonisued | pasiAsy ay |
“JUSWIEIS JO SMIIADI UoNIsUe.) Jo} 3de|d
u1 sassad0.d Sujuueld paJauaD) UOSId
‘sjuaJded pue oD WOy >Oeqpad) dARISOY
‘uonisue.y

SSO.DE pPaueIUlBW S|9AS| SSU30.4d
SJI9pPURYQ Sunoy «

sjusJed 95U »

IJIAIRS DV

sjooyds |e1dadg .

:sdnoug Suimo||o} aya wouy

9|doad 8uno ) jo uonedidnaed paseauou|
‘{sassadoud ¢ pue

T ‘| Sh|d UONISUBJ | [BSISAIUMN UIBIUIRL

Aauig of

"S9DIAJDS Y3 eoH
[B3UB INPY ©3 S,uaJp|IyD wouy Aemyied

(1 pue a.e) 81205 NPy O3 5,UBJP|IYD Wo.y
Aemyaed (11 {pasN [BUOEINPT JO JUBWIAILIS
JO SM3IA3J [enuue (1 :3ulpnjdul suoniisue.)
paseq ad1AJas £33 y3nouya 8uiod ajdoad 3unok

Joj sassad0.d Suluue|d paJIusD) UOSJISd paquig

yal

uos.eag uyof

‘J9sIApY uonedidnaed ay jo

9joJ 3y jo Juswdojaasp aya A|jedndads auow
pue s123(oud jo A3a1ueA © ySnoayl sdnoun)
3|qeJau|nA JIno Joj Ajjedadss ‘uoisiroad
9|-1sod ojul §, 93e15 A9 wouy sjdoad SunoA e

JOJ UONISUBJ] PAUIBISNS PUB [NJSSIIINS B S4NSUJ

[N

uosJeag uyof

's3un1as pue s|ooyds |[e YIM g-7 23e1S £9)] pue

sJea | AJ]Jeg SSOJd® paAdlyde ssaudoud ulelulel,|

1'S°1

dnoun)
swiay] 3ISIM
- diysuauluey

020¢
yanowA|d

S9DIAJSS S)Npe
01 s,uaJp|Iyd
WoJ} pue jooyds
AJepuodas

0} uonisuesy
a3 AjJejnonJed
‘suopisue.y

Joj ajdoad

3unoA aJuedaud

pue 31Xy §'}




Page 51

A1) 9y ssoude ded Juswureize

Dgl| [euonednpa 3yl MOJJeU 01 SNUNRUOD) §'|'T
“wn|N2144nd 3402
33 JO asn aANEaJD YSnoJy) ‘spJaepuels
UOos.Ieag asieJ 03 sa3ua||eyd Juedliusis Isow
uyo( (Ajjeniuy)| aya 8uidey sjooyds 03 1uoddns 1084 €T
‘looyds yoea
JO spaau ay3 03 paydrew si Juoddng - "yanowA|q 1oy
‘epuade [\|31S 9Y3 JO JBME 3JE S|ooYds epuage (NILS) syrely pue Sulizauisuy CRIVET Iy
[le pue 22e|d ul saako|dwa aJe auay] - uos.resg ‘ABojouyda] ‘a3uaidg dyr ysnouyy pue ysi3u3 ‘syiel
aseduwn ue Suiaey aue Aoyp|  UYo[ (Ajfeniu)[sjooyds ui syaely pue 93uaIdg d0wold T'|°T JSIM ui A4ejnonJed
123 smoys 3ulioluow pue suejd uonde ! sjooyds | dnoug)| ‘sjpAs| JusWISA3IYDE
UMO J1dY3 Sunusawa|dwi dJe S|ooyds ||y - SPJEPUE]S J00|4 MO|3g, 10} A3a1e11g duiyoea ] pue [euonesnpa
syauow g| - 7| IXau syl uj|  uosueag uyof saployIny [ed207 ay3 uswddwy |1zl Suluaeay ogl anoudw| |
souo03sa|i A)) qui uondy pea aAnd3lqo

3400}y uljod

9]doad SunoA pue uaJpjIyd |[& 40} JUSLIDASIYI® JO S|9A3] dAroadwi]

T foug

ueld AdAIIRA F1 - 1107 ddAD




Page 52

S|OOYDS |[B UIYIIM SSDUDIBME 3SIEY
‘su94ed 3unoA ||B 01 J9}0 JyD) © IPIAO.IY
‘suaued 3unoA jo Ja1si3au e dojpasg
‘saleaq|

UIyIM s2ed UOIIBWLIOI SPIAO.IY

uawAojdwa

Jo 3ujuresy ‘uopedINpPa JaYlIny
3ulJ21Ud SJ9AEI| 34D Jo ddeuaduad ay| -
pue ‘sy3ely pue ysijdug uipnjdul
quafeAIinbs 4o $3§DDH D - .V § Sulasiyde
9JBd U] UdJp|IYd jo a8equaduad ay] -

‘7 93e1g Aoy

e Yo3el pue ysi3ug ui § [9A3] Suiydeau
9JBD U] UdJp|IYd jo a8eauaduad ay] -

:ul AlaenonJed

sdnoug paiaduel uoy ssaudoud pajessjedde

jo A1o1dafesy paemdn panunuod & moys

UDIYM PalUSPI 2q 03 S3UCISAIl- DL

Y3NOA putE SolJedql] "SUOIXauuoo
SB UONS SIDIAJISS [BSIDAIUN puUE
s|ooyds Yam A|3so|d adow Supjiom Aq

aeludoadde ausym juoddns yum wayy

s3uljjoD el apiroud ‘suaueD) Suno puelsuapun
/ PImoH Ao[ pue Ajusapl am moy aroudw| €7°C

‘sdnou3 s|qeJau|np jo uoisnpul

(pa3ulodde|pue juswurelze ay3 Sulinsua ul sjooyds

9q o] ) deg Joj 1u0ddns apiroud 03 (] IM3)

9yl MouJeN|[  wes] uswaAsIydy Alioully d1uyag
- JOSIAPY JOIUSS[ a3 Jo 9jou aya dojpAsp 01 anunuoD) T'T'T

‘s;idnd Jayo ||e pue aJed ul

s|idnd asoys usamiaq des Juswaalyde

9Y3 9dnpaJ 03 JapJo ul ulAdIYdeISpUN

Jayoea] pesaH 9JB OYM 34D Ul U3Jp|IyD) 40}
|[OoOYDS [BNLIIA [SUOIUSAIDIUL pa3a8Je) Dy1dads aplaodd |'T'T

3SIM
/ dnougy

Suiyoea| pue
Suiuaes Dgl

‘2Jed ul

USJP|IYd pUB SJ2Jed
SunoA 3uipnppul
sdnoug s|qeJau|np
JO JUBWIBARIYDY
[euoneonpy

ay3 aroadw

(44




Page 53

dnoug) s uaJp|iyD 91AI9S SS0UDH
SIWH Jo 3Jyoud sy asied 01 snunuoD)

‘SUIUOW 7| UIYIIM JNDDO O} SIUDAD

(pa3ulodde

9q o)) den
a3 MouJeN|

‘uipuelsiapun

pue an3ojelp |euoneIaudSIIU]
Suluaya8uanys ‘A3unwWod JapIm
3Y3 YIIM pue JaYy1a30] ‘SIUDAD SPIM
A2 uj 93edidnJed oy sjdoad Sunof

jo awuweJ3oud [enuue jo uonedl|gqnd |- JOSIAPY Joluag| Joj saniunluoddo jo a8ued B SpIAOId €T
‘l]aued
suolsiAo.g [euondadxy Joj 9duaJdjey Jo
SWI9 ] PUE S[9UBd JUSWIDE|J AJBPUOIDS ‘uoIsn|dxa Jo dysi
pue Auewlig paseq A1|Bd0| 10} 90Ua.I940Y € USJP|IYd SOy Uo sndoj JejndnJed
Jo swua ] jo juswdo|aAsp Jayiny ® YIIM SIUSWIUOUIAUD 3ujuied)
sapnjaul Ya1ym ‘pasnpo.d si aduepualie [|e ul unoiaeyaq 3uidud|jeyd Suissappe
PU® JNOJABYSq JO JUSW3eUBW pUNo.e 03 yoeoudde uowwod e ‘siaydes)
s3uimas [euoneonpa [|e 4o ddueping| auAuP|y Adep peay YaIm uopneynsuod ui ‘dojpasg €£'€°7
‘Bujures ] A1ajes-a paAladau
9ABY OYM S|OOYDS JO # aseaudul 393Je |
‘yeas Jpyl Burureny 3ui|nq 4aq4> ; A1ayes
03 ujured ] A19yes-3 PaJaAI|d9p 9ABY OYM -9 9AI923J oYM s3UIBS JO Jaquinu Yl
s3un3ag sJea A A|Je3 Jo # 9seaddul 3934e ] aseaudul pue ‘3ul||nq paseq |ooyds
‘sjooyds A4epuodas 3uipnjoul uo siseydwsa JejnonJed e yum ‘Aid
sjooyds aJow 031 sJaisng A|ng puedxy Sgl| 2y3 ur Buid|nq jo 1dedwi Y3 9dNpayY T €T
dnouoy s,usJp|iyD) IJIAISS SI0ISH ‘(|]opow SHIN®L
SIWH j0 3Jyoud sy asies 01 snunUOD) ay3 jo uey) “yeis woddns jooyds
‘SUIUOW 7| UIYIM JNDDO O) SIUDAD Joj Sujure.y Jueasissy 34oddng Aoeaanr
Jo swwea3oud |enuue jo uonedliqnd [lyeD zi7| [euonowsq jo AjiqejieAe ayl puedxy |'€°C

3SIM
/ dnougy

Suiyoea| pue
Suiuaes Dgl

9OUapljuod

Jauul pue

3uiduojaq jo asuas

e y3noayy A|jerdadss

9|doad 3unoA pue

uaJp|Iyd jo 3uixq

- |IoM 3y owoud

pue aduspljuod

- o5 pling

4




Paqe 54

‘pJieog
2 29X3 0707 YnowA|d Aq pas.Se pue payinuapl aJe
sdeoy ‘uoisn|oul [eldueUl pUB JUSWAOSASP JIWOUODD
‘Buisnoy ‘ssaussapjdom o} sueld AISAIRP UIYIIM
pagpajmow)de st A1uaA0d pjiyD) ‘padojarsp A3aie.1s
Ayaanod pjiyD ‘sueld sdnou3 swayy pue saidaens

JUBASJJ UIYIIM A1uaAod pliyd jo uoniudoday

Bujuolssiwwon)
S,us.Ipiiy>d
‘Buiwia)4 euOl4

g saed ) Al4eq ‘|leH of

A
92 $50.JE $955920.d SUIUOISSILIWOD UIYIM SJI0IBDIpUI
Aaanod pjiyd jo uonesodiodul ay3 wouy paseq

PaUu.Ed| SUOSS3| PUEB SISSIVINS [BDO| dJeys pue unided)

ddd ‘Aingsures as1pued)

A3a1ens A3aaaod pliys aya UIyIIm passa.ppe
9q 01 sJalueq pue sded £y Ajauspi pue A1usaod

P|IY> UO JUSWISSISSE J|3S SPIM AIID B UdEIISPUN

sAemainoy

‘B)AOAA WEI[JIAA

‘A|[leuoneu pue A|jeuoi8au yyoq
sanjunlioddo pue syul| 9AREIOQE||0D JO 93eIUBAPE
[In} Sunjea Sjaomiau A1aaaod pliyd [euolSau ISIAA

YINog aY3 YaM Juswagedus [ed0] [9A3] Y31y 1edauan)

ddd ‘Aingsures as1puen)

tuoisnpoul [eppueuly pue Suisnoy ‘ueld s,sjdoad unoA
pUE U3JP|IYd> 3USWAO|SASP DIWIOUOID ‘SSIUSSI|IOM
se yons sue|d AuaAlop Ay Aq pauuidiapun

s1 1ey3 A3a1ea3s L1U9A0d PJIyD apimAld & dojaasg

(A3

ddd ‘Aingsures as1pued)

‘pJeog SUISq||9AA PUB YI|BSH PUB pJBOg UIMO.D) 32
uo sndoy oydads & Yam ‘sdnoud sways | pue 0Z0T

yanowA|d ssodde L31aaod piyd jo djiyoad sy asiey

asn | suJp|IyD

‘ssauisnq s, ApogAana

Ayaanod pliyd adely

3

sau03SaI| A3

Hury

uondy

pea

2A1323Iq0

12 LOY VRELTTIVV

K3aan0d plyD sppelL

€ Aong

ueld AdAlRA ¥ 1 - 1107 ddAD




Paqe K5

Buluolssiwwo)

s,uaup|IyD

©2JOPIOM

[eD0] ® jo ddueUUIRW puk JudWdo|aAdp ay3 uoidweyd

‘Buiwa|4 eUOl{| Ssassadoud juswadandouad pue Sujuolssiwwod y3nody]  §7’E
SUSJPJIYD Y sal|iwey
juswdojaasg Joj JuswAojdwaun jo Ino 3anod e se Juswiojdwa
d1Wouod3 U300 e[| Jos 230woud 01 dnoud ssaussaPIOAA Y3 Yaim 8eSug T’
‘awodul JI19Y3 SSIWIXeW
01 9|qe A||n} aJe sjua.ed 2unsud O) SUONEPUSWIWODII
opIAoJd pue ‘saljiWe) SSIPJIOM PUE HJOM-UI YI0q
uo sadueyd aJejam jo 1oedwil Sy puelstapun A|ny
uoisnpuj| 031 dnou3d ysiuly pue dse) e ysijqeasa ‘sdno.s uoisnjou|
[e120S ‘A|quieH of| [eldUBUI{ pUB SSDUSSIPIOAA Y2 YIIM UONEBIOGR||Od U]  €7°€
*SIY) SS9JPPE O SUONBPUIWIWIODD.
dojaasp pue quawojdws Aijenb ysiy ssadoe
01 Ajiqe ;sauaJed auo| 01 suaLIIeq A3 aY3 Ajlauapl
sn|d @3ua)| o3 dnous ysiuy pue dsel e ysijqeisa ‘sdnou3 uoisnjuj
qo[ ‘uols|deis Aon| |eIdUBUI] PUB SSOUSSIPJIOAA Y3 YUM UONBIOGR||OD U]  TTE
Y-CRENN
uswdoppasg SSUSSIPIOAA Wedp Yy uiyum sdnous Ayaolud
dlWwouod] Uaxoo] dJel| se syuaded pue spjo JAp7-g| jo Sunadiel syl yowodd  |'TE

dnou 9 SAIINO3X3

0707 yanowAid

‘Sp|oyasnoy ssapjiom
ut 3ulAl| uaJp|iyd

JO Jaquinu ay3 dNpay  T'€




SJSAI9YJ® ISOMO|

‘yajeay [eauaw [equaJed ‘i1 ‘Yajeay [edisAyd pue [eausw

[euJalEW | JUSWAO[SASP [BNIDS|[DIUI J33E| S,P[IYD

%07 3Ya 4O} SOUI02INO 2A0dUI PUE JUBWUIEIIE uo 1oedwi [Im 3By sanijenbaul yajeay 3uissauppy  §HE
sJeah Alses ul ded uspusd aya u uononpau 1983U00 BulureIsNS pue saljIure)
® pue (Q3Sd pPue @770 Ul sswomno paAroadwi 3|qeJaUINA ISOW 3Y3 O3 SUONUIAIRIUI undsie] '€
'SaWoNo
Sp|o Jeak 7 paSeaueApesip aAoJdwil 01 UOIUBAIRIUI A[JBD DANIBYD YUM
03 paJayo sade|d A49sanu 93.) JO JaqUINU SSEIIDU] ‘Juawdo|oA3p [BUOIIOWR pUE [EI20S pUE ‘s||js d3endue|
pUE UOIEDIUNWWOD poog dABY USJP|IYD |[e Sulinsug  €4'¢
pa1sjO Aq 49139q/pood pawaap s8umas 9, dsealdu| 'splo Jeak
7 P93BIUBAPESIP UO SN0} [BUONIPPE LIIM ‘UONIEINPD
sowweJSoud saeaf Aluea Ajenb y3iy [esaaAlun 03 ssadde paseaddu] 7€
Sunuaued paseq 2ouapIAS jo djeadn ul aseaUdU| ‘s||>ys SunnuaJsed pood {s9DUBYD ByI| S,UJP[IYD
© (‘'siya usye sJed )\ AJlJeg dojaasp 03 syuaued Joj 1uoddns aAndays Bulpiaodd | pE diysaauiiey uo 1oedwi aAnesau
_5“ AJ03INIEBIS 9q ||IM JUSWISSISSE MAU ) | | 0T PU® | 10Z| ‘IIeH of %8 yajeaH o1qnd :Aq ssauipea. jooyds pue jJuswdojaAsp 1891808 Isow 9yl dAey JeYd
mu 1sn3ny :eaep 9|jo.d 8.1 uonepunod saes ) AlJej ‘DISUD|IB UOSIY| JO [9A3] POOS B SASIYDE OYM UR.P|IYD JO J9qUINU DY) SSBaIdU| saea | AjJe3| senijenbaul oy 9dnpay '€
m
UOISN|dXa [eldUBUL PUB [BID0S
juediuis 419y ssauppe o3 syuaJed 93eus9y o3 Juoddns
yaim uonepowwodde Aljenb poog jo uoisiroud aunsuz  €'E
ay3 Joj Juoddns pue 331ApPE YaIm pue sadjoyd 3uisnoy
juspuadapul pue payioddns fijenb poog 03 ssadoe
y3nouya ‘uaJp|iyd yum saijiwey pue d|doad Sunol
p—— SuisnoH ‘NauJeD) Ne 1sS8UOWE ‘SSDUSSI[WIOY JO SDUSPIdUI AY) dNPAY  £°€°€
USUM UB|g SUISNOH 92 WOy SOUOISIILU 23S ‘SUIpMO.IDISA0 JBEqUIOD 0] S3ljIwey J33.e| Joj suondo
103598 Suisnoy paaouadwi yam ‘A3s1ea3s Suisnoy Suiwoddn
pa1uaJ aeAlid 9yl pue spJojpue| [BIDOS paJalsidau ay3 y3noaya ua.pjiyd Yam saijiwey 4oy Suisnoy
ssodojaAsp yam sdnous s|qe.aujna jo pasu Suisnoy Odl| S|gepJoye pueusdsp O SS9IJE pasea.dul sjowodd TS
a3 Sunsaw jo sAem aAneuiew! aio|dxa Jayring tsadueyd youaq uisnoy Aq paidaye
pasnpo.Jiu| uojsnjdu| AjpAnedau sjdoad 8unoA o3 suonn|os aAlsuodsau dnoun ‘A1aanod piyo
USYM 1IPR.JD [BSJISAIUN {| 0T O3 UoneJdily yroows [e120s ‘A|quieH of PUE 9AID3YS JBAIRP staulied apim A1 aunsuj g g|o18a3e.ag SuisnoH|pajejad Suisnoy 2dnpay  €°¢




Page 57

odlL

'sjooyds uj
Buruaea] [ suoissas Ajiqeded [edueul JaAIRP 01 SABM dANRBUISEWI

Suo|ayI ‘Aousamg ey dojaaap o3 suauraed uo1das ayeAlld yum a8e3uy  £'G¢
{s|ooyds uIyIIM sHjueg uojun
uoisnjou| 3IpaJD) 03 sSa20E Y3nodyl sadueul JIdY) 3euW 03

|e1dog ‘AlqueH of| moy uJed| 03 9|doad SunoA Joj senuniuoddo apirodd  7'G€
‘s8unias
Jayro pue sjooyds ui 3uoddns Ayijigeded [epueuy
Buiuaea]| JoAlRp 03 9)qe aJe Yoiym ‘©|doad SunoA pue uaupjiyd

Suojoy ‘Aousamg [4ey]|  Joj sadialas 3doddns ul ded syy ssauppe pue Ajausp|  |'SE

asnJ L s,ueapliyD

A|qisuas
saoueuly a3eurw
01 Ajiqedes s ;sjdoad

8unoA anouduw

9€




"passa.ppe

sI uoisinoad paseq Ajiwey pue A11[ed0] UlyIM
sawwe.8o.ud paseq aouspias Suippaqus Aq Aisaqo
JUBDIUSIS YIIM SOyl Joj suonuaAsul ul ded ay |
pue {padojaAsp sI saDIAISS AJelID) 01 Yy3nouyy

uonuaaaud wouy skemyred padeys Aouagennw

(Paysi|qeasa aq
01% Dg]) dnoug
PIUD |00y
Ayajea g (si4g
-0) diysuauduey

5EQ
Page 58

‘paddew s1 A&yisaqo pue 3ydiom Ay3jeay e paldauip RIFCRLNAIN
$92JN0S3. PUB SIDJAISS PAUOISSILIWOD JUIIND |y RETREIETL *f31Ss9qO POOYP|IYd 3dNpaJ O3 SUOIIUAAIRIUI JOAIRT 4 | y|  s4ed A AMe]
‘uaJp|iy> pade
|ooyds 40} suonRuaAINU| A[Jes pue uonowo.id yijeay
‘uopuaAa.d Jo Uayo 3401 paaide Ue s| 3J43Y3 pue
‘paddew usaq sey suaulied £ wouj suonNqLIIUOd
33 pUE S3DIAJSS dAIssau30ud pue [esdaAlun Suipnjul
‘QInpayds g |- awwea3oud pjiyd Ayyeay ay jo (paysiqeasa
AJSAI9P pue 3UlUOISSIWIWOD JU3JINd 3y ‘uopeiado 9q 012 Dg])
-02 Aouagde Jaulied ySnoays weudodd pjiyd {sani[ed0| ulyaum awwea3o.d pliyD AyyesH ay3 Jo JusW|9 dnou pjiyD
YI[eaH sJeak g| - G 3y Jo AISAIPp pauayidua.ng Jaug anf[  (98e jooyos) sueah g| - G YI JO AIDAIPP SAIDRYS dJunsug €| |ooyss AyiesH
diysaauyiey
Jatag an( SanI[ed0| UIYIIM dwweaSodd PlIyD AyijesH d13a3eg
Ddl g aisuadpdely uosly|  ays Jo Juswdd sUueak G- Y3 JO AUSAIIDP DANDRYS dunsug T || saed\ Ajue3
"P3JBAI|SP S| SWea)
Aeoo] ysnouys ad1AI9S YijesH [eaud)y AJewilig
PUE ‘SSNSS| Y283y [BIUSW S,USJP|IYd> SFeurW
[ooyds djay o1 a|qe|ieAe si (jopow (SHIABL) 9J1AISS
YaeaH [eaualy pa3asie] jo 1ied) uoneynsuod
‘9pIdINS pue wey jjas uo 3ujure.d uipnpaul diysasuyaey ‘9|doad BunoA pue
“(SHINVYD) 221AJ9S Y3|edH [BIUS|] 9DUDSI|OPY ‘swajqo.d yfeay [eausw / Suragjom euonowd 3uidiawd YI[edH [BIudly uaJp|iyd jo 3uraqem
pue p|iyD Aq paJaAlap Suluress yaeay [eauaw SPOIIIAA ‘|9AS] MO] 193w 03 AJ1ed dudAJIRIUl 0 AJdeded oy aAey pue SuIq|IPAA pUE U3[eay [e3usW pue
03 yoeoudde uejnpow ‘9|qissadde jo JuawdopAs| ApulD % [|IyeD zI ‘9|doad 3unoA pue uaJp|Iyd 40} SIDIAISS [BSIDAIUN dUNSUT ||} |euoppowy [ed1sAyd ay3 sroudw|  |p
sau03s9|i| £o)y] jui uondy pesn aAnRd3lqo

IISNDE pPedarely
pue UBAIINS,O Ned

91 03 34e)s 3|qissod 3saq BYI YIIM UJP|IY>d ||e dpIAoad

p Ayionid

ueld A1PA11Q ¥1 - 1107 ddAD




'spaau diy1dads

J19Y3 399w 03 31oddns pue 3JIApE ‘UONEBULIOJUI SSIIJE UBD

1 10T 42qwiadaq Aq a2e|d uj uoisiroad oiidadg Z1UeMUDS dAe(]| sauaJded Suisnsiw adueISqns AQ pa1daye USJp[IYd JBY3 dJNSU]  H'EP
110¢
JaquIad3( S9dUSWWOD uolsiAoad paJapua) MaN| ‘uejd uondazoud piyd
& SulAeY P[IYD B Ul 403DB) A € S| dsnsiw [oyod[e [eud.ed
1107 3sn8ny Aq 9oe|d Ul aARENIUl WIISU| Z1IBMUDS 9AB(]| 9J9UM SUOIUIAIIUI [OYOd[e IsI[e1dads 01 SS90dE 99JUBIBND) €€
{|ooy2s dy1 PaIdBIUOD PUB X3 dJBydM & pa3d|dwod "asnqe
b ‘sjooyps |[e 4oy Sulured | s3uljjoD) dJel| SABY QUSPIDUI SDUS|OIA d1ISBWO(] B SUIPUSIIE USYM ‘9D1|0d 53SSWOP puE W.ey
_k” L2123y ssoude 10|id Y3 JO INO ||od |NYsSIING | Aapja1g Apuy| aya aunsus 01 sjooypds |e 03 ssedwoduy, uonesado no |0y  TEP uspp1y uo siseydwa
D "3JU3|OIA J13SAWO(] JO 3INS3J B Sk dueD) diysasuiied ue Yam ‘swajqoud
Do_m [BID0S S,UBJP|IYD O3 UMOUS| USJP|IYd JO suaquinu ‘oJed wJeH usppiH|  odnjnw yYam saijiwey
Ul uondNpa. YIIM paleIDOoSSE s198Je] - DF] sduljjod| oaul Suiwod ajdoad SunoA pue ualp|Iyd JO S|9AS| ddNpa. 01 pue diysuaulued| pue sjdoad SunoA uoy
‘poroudde ase)) ssauisng| dJely /33025 APIN|  soljiwey Joy swwe.Soud juswies. Jorensadiad auswedw]  |'gf| 9snqy dnsswo| 3doddns Ales spinodd €4
"URJP[IYD 03 SHsld dY2 ddNnpad yd1ym 1ioddns
gl B8 Jo sa3e>oed JUSAI|9p pUE S)NPE JO SP33U Y3 SSISSE O)
ogl| Asjwiao usaunely| sadiadas synpe yum syuswaduedde diysasuiaed usyadusang LT
‘||e 03 3|qissadde
A3|wliDy usaunel pue asod.nd oy 31 ‘@3ep 031 dn aJe sadnoead Supjiom
Adueldwod pue suonedsiunwwo?) - DG | 2 UIMp[eg ang pue saunpadoud ‘sapijod uondaoud piiyd Adouady NN €T
Buiureay Aouage-njnw jusawijdwod o3 a3eridoudde
‘uiue.y Aouade uojunelg Auo | aJaym s|ie3aaop pue asodund Joj 31 si 31 JBY) S4NSUD
9|3uls 10} pJepuElS HJIE| Y Yl 393W S3IDUBSE ||| 3§>P0d0pY duljode)| 03 Sujure.d ISNOY-Ul A1yl IBN[BAS PUB MIIARJ SADURSE |IY T
‘sue|d pue
SIUBWISSASSE {\yD) Alljenb Jo suaquinu syl ul aseaJdu|
‘uejd uonsayoud ¥1/110T ‘uaJp|Iya pJeog uaJp|iyD A1 3y ssoude
PIIY2 B YIIM USJP|IYD JO SJaquinu a3 JO Uondnpay ue|d ssauisng Jo} sndoy swodino Alljenb apiroud o3 ‘Bupjaom Aouage Suipaen3ajeg| uonsaloud pjiyo Aouage
£2JBD U] USJP|IYd JO sdaquinu 33 jo uondnpay| gdSd Pinoo wiffijnw y3noays aonoe.ad [euoissajold usayiduaais o) sanupuod |7 yanowi|d -nw uayadua.nng  Td




Page 60

‘sanijedo| ul 3uoddns joyodje

J9||I uyof|  apiaoud o1 padpeq, SIDIAISS JO J9qUINU BSBAIDU| €°|°G
7107 w491 3uludg
$92UBWIWOD JDV Ul 3SY Jo AUdAlRQ
| 10T 3das pasJde s3uniss
(3DVv) uoneonp3 Aseauswa|dwod) ‘s3unias
9AnBUIR|Y Ul (3SY) uonesnp] 3DV |Ie ut 8jdoad 3unof 03 swwe.doud uoneonpa
x3G pue diysuone|ay JaAllPp 01 ue|d| a4kl Auel |[oyooje pue 3nup ‘xas ‘diysuonejad JoAlRQ T'1'S
[ 10C 4299320
92USWIWOD S[BJIDJDJ PO JAG |- |
| 107 42quaidag ‘suk
dnour) 123oud 48D WO} UOISIDAIQ] 61 - | | pa3e sjdoad
Aq yo paudis Aemyred pjo 4K |- | 8uno£ ajqesaujna
(4vD) >]1oMmdWeI JUBWSSISSY JO spasu ay3 192w
UOWIWOD) B YIIM SIUSISS|OPE. |BNPIAIPUI JO 3114 uyo[ ‘sp|o Jeak 03 340ddns yanoA
Jaquinu a3y Ja1aenb Aq uauenb aseaudu| |/ supjdwig aAeq|g|-| | ©3 S921AI9s 1u0ddns DAISUSIUL JO JBYO USPIAA |']°S Odl| 9AIsusul JaAIIRT |
s2u03s9|i| KoY qury uondy peo 9An23Iqo

J4334e>) a133ey

S9JIAI9S PaJAAIRP A3Ijed0] y3noJayj sinoiAeyaq 3unje) dsid appPeL

g fy1a014g

ue|d ARAIRA ¥ - 1107 ddAD




Paqge 61

¢l - 110C veld

‘uonew.oyu; pue 3uoddns o3 uonednJey
$S9208 ASEd YIM SUulI93IUN|OA YINOA SpIM 3uiseaudu] -|  sawwea3oud uonelpatdde y3nouyl 3uliaa3unjoA
A15 03 yoeoudde juaisisuod e si a4ay] |vdy 43|l uyof pue uonedipnJed s ajdoad Sunok agpsmowpPy €7
'sdnoud s|qeJaujna
Yam Juswadesus paseaJdul Jo dUSIPIAF|  T|-1107 ueld ‘@oualiadxa
‘{sawod3Ino uonednJey 4om 3|qenjeA ured 03 ajdoad SunoA 3uijqeus
PopJ0J3J pPUE SSWOIINO PAIIPIIIdE Suiseaudu| -|  ‘Buruasiunjoa y3nouys suonedidse uisied ul Isisse
01 Sunejau s1a84el paseg L1207 |vdY 43| UYof[  |im 3Byl Jdyo SuliaIUN|OA YINoA B 9dnpoaau| 7'T'S
‘looyds o Ino Jo ui AyAnRde dARIsod
JaY30 Jo 3ulia33un|oA ‘diysuaziad dAnRde ‘s8un3as Jayzo pue sjooyds ‘sapjunyioddo
9IMIISUOD YDIYM SIAIRDE Ul padeSus ade ulr soyla aAnde ue pue 3jdoad Suno\ pue uaJp|iyd 3uliaa3un|oA
a|doayg Suno A pue uaupjiyd jo AyJofew [[E 4O} JUSWIS[33US WN|NDIJ4JIND B Y30q SB UOIIBdNp] pue diysuaznid
© 91edIpul S ASAINS 9pIm - A11d [enuuy|  Asusamg aedyj|  diysusznid aAndy jo Juswdojpasp a3 uoddng |7’ aowodd TS
7107 Y24el Aq uondsdenuod
9|qis4aAa4 3unde 3uo| jo asn oddns 0
aJeD) AJewlad ul suepiuld 7€ jo 3ulured |
[ 10T 4990320 Aq 95e|d ul 921AJS YI[edH
[enxag pue uondadesauo) Allunwiwod) ‘uoisiaoad yajeay
Joj uoneoy1dads IJIAISS MIN uewae[ I [enxas pa3e.aSa3ul USAI[DP 03 SADIAISS USISIPRY ¥'|°§




Page 62

7107 2°Q Aq wedazelp Jo siqeuued
UIIM PIsn [OYODJe JO SID94d pUe disld dYd
UO S211|BDO| || Ul 3|qE|IBAB UOIBW.IO)U|
110C

120 4q |oyod[e jo S109y3 pue Ssld Y3
UO S2NI|BDO| || Ul 3|qE|IBAB UOJBW.IO)U|
7107 Y24ely Aq sdnoud Suiuoissiuwod
A31[e20] ||’ Yyam Judwadedu]

7107 WJ?) Jawwng AQ SUOneIDossy

SpeaH YMm Jusawagde3us d133ealSg

“SH|SIJ pale[aJ [Oyod|e

431 uyo[| pue 8nup jo Suipueisiapun sajdoad unoh sroudw| 7€'
‘uonednpa |oyodje
pue sSnJp pue ‘uonednpa xas pue diysuole|ad

Aausamg [Jedy]| Aujenb ysiy jo AusAl@p aunsus o1 sjooyds 3uoddng |'€°g

odl

‘2ouepind
pUE UonREW.JIo)U|
a1eludoudde pue

Ajpwn jo uoisiroad
ay3 ysnouys
SUOISID9p pawlIoul
PUE djes ddew 03
pue Ayjiqisuodsau

el 03 9|doad

dunoA 9|qeuz ¢'g




Page 63 Agenda ltem 7

CHILDREN’S EMOTIONAL WELL
BEING AND MENTAL HEALTH

Children and Young People Overview and Scrutiny

Panel Task and Finish Group PLYMOUTH

CITY COUNCIL

CHILDREN’S EMOTIONAL WELL BEING AND MENTAL HEALTH Page | of 16



Page 64

CONTENTS
I. Introduction
2.  Executive Summary
3.  Recommendations
4.  Scrutiny Approach
5. Key Issues Arising from the Evidence
6. Findings:
6a  Context in Plymouth
6b  Prevention and Promotion
6c  Early Intervention

6d  Specialist Services

Page 2 of |16



Page 65

I INTRODUCTION

The Children and Young People’s Overview and Scrutiny Panel scrutinises matters relating to
the health and well being of children and young people living and learning in the city. The Panel
reviews the impact of services provided by agencies ranging from the Council, Health, Police,
schools and colleges and the Voluntary and Community Sector. The panel also considers the
impact of partnerships such as the Children and Young People’s Trust, the Plymouth
Safeguarding Children Board and Plymouth 2020 Wise Theme Group.

One of the issues considered by the panel is the emotional wellbeing and mental health of
children and young people. This has been prioritised because of concerns about the emotional
health of children as reported through the Tellus 4 survey and through campaigning in Youth
Parliament elections. The Children and Young People’s Overview and Scrutiny Panel convened a
task and finish group in October 201 | to hear evidence from professionals from across the city
to understand the prevalence of mental health needs among children and young people and to
review the Children and Young People’s Emotional Wellbeing and Mental Health strategy and its
development.

This report summarises the findings of that review and makes recommendations for
improvements to key services.

2 EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

The scope of this review encompasses the broad range of mental health needs among children
and young people across Plymouth, and the extent to which they are being effectively met.
Around 15% of the the under 18 population, or 7800 individuals need some form of support in
relation to their emotional wellbeing and mental health. The panel found that, although there is
a broad range of services in place to provide preventative or early interventions, there does not
appear to be a coherent framework in place providing appropriate access to these services for
young people and their families. Schools do not feel fully supported by professional services in
addressing emotional wellbeing issues once identified, and there is a perceived lack of direct
intervention services, including counselling and family therapy.

Crucially, the review identified performance issues relating to the Child and Adolescent Service
Multi-Disciplinary Team provided by Plymouth Community Healthcare, resulting in a backlog of
over 250 children awaiting treatment, some for several months. The Panel are concerned about
performance management arrangements relating to this service, and the resulting impact on the
affected children and young people.

Page 3 of 16



3

Page 66

RECOMMENDATIONS

RI

The Panel extends its congratulations to members of the Youth Cabinet for their work
in carrying out the survey of attitudes towards mental health that is referenced in this
report

R2

Representatives of Children and Young People Overview and Scrutiny Panel attend the
Youth Cabinet to feed back on the report and recommendations following task and
finish review

R3

The Council should consider the use of social media networks to promote consultation
initiatives

R4

The Children’s Trust allocates responsibility to a lead agency to develop a framework
that clearly identifies the roles of statutory and non-statutory agencies and the
resources available both in prevention and early intervention work with regard to
mental health among children and young people.

R5

The Children’s Trust review reasons for non attendance of key professionals at
Common Assessment Framework meetings, and make recommendations to ensure that
such meetings are timely and properly resourced, with particular attention being paid to
the role of Educational Psychologists and communication interaction professionals.

Ré

Plymouth Community Healthcare (PCH) prepare a communications strategy with
respect to children and young people’s mental health and revise content of media as
appropriate

R7

The Panel commends the Excellence Cluster for their flexible approach to the delivery
of services and the best practice demonstrated in their work

R8

PCC and PCT commissioners review the range of early intervention services available
and assess the value for money of the range of options.

R9

The Council ensures that key universal services including schools and youth services are
notified of alternative counselling services available in the city.

RI0

The Council update the Panel regarding the impact of new multi-disciplinary locality
teams on Children’s emotional well being and mental health services in six months

RI

An urgent summit meeting to be arranged between strategic leads from CYPOSP, PCC,
PCT and PCH regarding the findings of this report

RI12

PCH review the cost effectiveness of participation support services for young people
using mental health services

RI3

The Children’s Trust investigate and report on ways in which the work of clinicians and
other children’s professionals can be better coordinated with respect to mental health
support

R14

The Children’s Trust establishes a clear and transparent process for the identification,
monitoring and escalation of issues such as those identified in this report.

RIS

Commissioners from the Children’s Trust provide interim updates to CYPOSP on the
response to these recommendations.

Page 4 of 16




Page 67

4 SCRUTINY APPROACH

The Overview and Scrutiny Management Board approved in principle on 21 September 201 |, the
establishment of a Task and Finish Group to review Children’s Emotional Well being and Mental
Health with membership drawn from the Children and Young People Overview and Scrutiny
Panel.

Task and Finish Objectives

The group was asked to:

e Understand the prevalence of mental health needs among children and young people
e Review the Children and Young People’s Emotional Wellbeing and Mental Health strategy
and developments

The Work Programme Request (PID) is attached as Appendix |.

Membership

The Task and Finish Group had cross party membership comprising the following Councillors —

o Councillor Wildy (Chair)
Councillor Stark (Vice Chair)
Councillor Bowie

Councillor Mrs Bowyer
Councillor Delbridge
Councillor Tuohy

For the purposes of the review, the Task and Finish Group was supported by -

o Claire Oatway, Lead Officer for Children and Young People OSP
° Liz Cahill, Commissioning Officer and Panel Adviser
o Amelia Boulter, Democratic Support Officer

Methodology

The Task and Finish Group convened over two days | I™ and 12" October 2011 to consider
evidence and hear from witnesses —

e Camille Smith, Routeways

e Alistair Baggott, Routeways

e Caroline Storer, Platform 51

e Wendy Brett, Headteacher, Sir John Hunt

e Lisa Hartley, Excellence Cluster

e Mel McMahon, Excellence Cluster

e Emily Carter, Member of Youth Parliament and Kerry Whittlesea

e Alan Fuller, Principal Educational Psychologist, Plymouth City Council

e Cate Simmons, Head of Children Services, Plymouth Community Healthcare
e Dan O’Toole, Director of Finance, Plymouth Community Healthcare

Page 5 of 16



Page 68

e Michelle Thomas, Operations Director, Plymouth Community Healthcare
e Fiona Fleming, Commissioning Manager, Plymouth City Council
e Paul O’Sullivan, Joint Director of Commissioning, Plymouth Primary Care Trust

Background material provided to the group included:

e Briefing Paper

e Mental Health 5-a-day leaflets for Children, Young People and Young Adults

e Extract from Children’s Fund Consultation 2010 — Mental Health and Emotional Wellbeing

¢ ‘Improving the State of our Minds’ — Emotional Wellbeing and mental Health of Children
and Young People in Plymouth — Joint commissioning Strategy 2009 — 2014

¢ An Introduction to Children and Young People’s Emotional Wellbeing and Mental Health in
Plymouth Needs Analysis

e South West Public Health Observatory — Children’s and Young People’s Mental Health in
the South West

e Presentation from Youth Parliament

5 KEY ISSUES ARISING FROM THE EVIDENCE

The focus for the task and finish group was intended to be on the range of emotional wellbeing
and mental health issues in the city. There are some findings and recommendations relating to
this broad spectrum of work. However, a disproportionate amount of time was taken to
consider performance issues within Plymouth Community Healthcare’s Child and Adolescent
Service Multi-Disciplinary Team. This specialist service currently has 254 children awaiting
treatment, some for several months.

o It is estimated that approximately 15% of the under-18 population need some form of
support in relation to their emotional wellbeing and mental health. there are a number of young
people who are effectively hidden and not accessing services who are at a higher risk because
they haven’t been able to access preventative or early intervention services.

o A broad range of services are in place across the city to provide preventative or early
intervention services. However, there is no coherent framework around these services which
can make it difficult for young people or families to access them.

o Schools have a number of professionals who have been trained to intervene. Where
children need more targeted support a CAF assessment will be held. It can be difficult to pull
together all relevant professionals around the table which leads to a lack of knowledge among
workers and delays in the support provided. This also leads to schools feeling left with an issue
that should have multi-disciplinary ownership.

e  Young people do not tend to seek advice from professionals — particularly GPs and
teachers if they have a problem. Friends were seen as more of a comfort when young people

have an issue and could be in similar situation.

o Direct interventions including counselling and family therapy were seen as effective in
containing and resolving issues. However, there was a perceived lack of services in the City.

Page 6 of 16



Page 69

o More than 250 children are currently on a waiting list for the specialist multi-disciplinary
team. For children had waited 6 months and longer for a referral, it is quicker for parents to
refer through their GP.

o Contract monitoring had identified a backlog in Autumn 2010. However, there has been a
significant delay in remedial action by the provider service. An intervention plan has now been
developed — awaiting sign-off - that brings in professionals from other services to ensure young
people and their families get urgent support.

o By the time the children were referred to CAMHS their needs were complex and the
service could not respond to new children coming in.

. Issues of confidence in resolving the problems emerged during the review. There was

significant concern among members of the panel about the impact that delays were having on
children and families and the impact this backlog was having on other services for children

Page 7 of 16



Page 70

6 FINDINGS
6a Context In Plymouth

The World Health Organisation defines mental health as :

‘A state of well being in which every individual realises his or her own potential, can cope with the normal
stresses of life, can work productively and fruitfully and is able to make a contribution to his or her
community’

The Mental Health Foundation describes emotional wellbeing as :

‘A positive sense of wellbeing which enables an individual to be able to function in society and meet the
demands of everyday life; people in good mental health have the ability to recover effectively from illness,
change or misfortune.’

For the purpose of the strategy and this paper child and adolescent mental health services or
‘CAMHS’ is defined in its broadest sense to include all services that promote emotional well-
being and develop good mental health, as well as those which respond to and meet the mental
health needs of children and young people through assessment and support.

An Introduction to Children and Young People’s Emotional Wellbeing & Mental Health in
Plymouth: Needs Analysis November 2008 gives a full breakdown of need, including stakeholder
consultation, and found that national prevalence of mental health need for children and young
people under 18, described at three levels of need', is:

e Those whose needs require use of a specific specialist service. This is estimated at 2.5%
of the population (1,040 in Plymouth), including a very small % that may require inpatient
care.

e Those whose needs can be managed by other professionals with the relevant skills and
experience. This is estimated at 7.0% of the population (3,600 in Plymouth)

e Those who experience mild emotional and behavioural difficulties or early stages of
disorders. This is estimated at 15% of the population (7,800 in Plymouth)

We should expect to see increased levels and severity of the problems faced in Plymouth due to
the correlation between social deprivation and mental health problems

There are some groups of children and young people who experience particular risks to mental
health, these include; those with learning disabilities; Children in Care; asylum seekers and
refugees; those in the criminal justice system.

There are also some clear inter-relationships between mental health and childhood abuse and
trauma, substance misuse, chaotic family backgrounds and parental mental illness.

The Panel was impressed with engagement work undertaken in the city, but concerned with
value for money issues with the Routeways contract relating to the very small number of young
people they were working with and funded by CAMHS. Queries were raised as to how much of
CAMHS works is subcontracted and to whom.

' Research by Child and Maternal Intelligence Unit

Page 8 of |16



Page 71

On behalf of the Children’s Trust, the Children and Young People’s Emotional Wellbeing and
Mental Health Partnership (the Partnership) was formed in 2007. It consists of representatives
across schools, health services, early years services, youth services, social care and the voluntary
and community sector. It was formed to have oversight of improvements in children’s emotional
wellbeing and mental health services.

The strategy outlines key objectives for improvement based on three strategic outcomes:

Area of Work Outcomes

Promotion and Prevention Raise aspirations, address stigma and discrimination, and
increase resilience of children, young people and their families in
relation to their emotional wellbeing and mental health.

Early Intervention Children, young people and families with emerging mental
health needs receive support that prevents problems developing
further, and reduces the impact of this on their lives.

Specialist Services Ensure delivery of integrated services for children and young
people with identified mental health needs.

This framework will be used to organise findings from other written submissions and evidence

6b. Prevention and Promotion

The panel received a variety of evidence outlining young people’s views of mental health and
support. The 2010 Children’s Fund consultation asked 2532 young people aged 10-16 about
mental health and emotional wellbeing including feeling angry or unhappy and support they
receive. Headline results are shown below:

Certainly Somewhat Not true

True True
| get very angry and often 632 141 515
lose my temper
| worry a lot 459 1143 685
| am often unhappy, 206 785 1274
downhearted or tearful

Yes No

Would you talk to someone if you were 1548 682
worried about your emotional health?
Have you ever asked for advice about your | 200 1958
emotional health
If yes, was the advice helpful? 162 36

Page 9 of 16



Page 72

Young people responded to the invitation to provide evidence by carrying out an online survey.
The survey was supported by PCC and was advertised via an independent facebook page, more
than 120 young people took part in the survey over a two week period and the spread was
representative across the City.

Who would you talk to if there was a problem?

% Answer
Friend 29%
Parents 22%
Youth Worker 14%
Teacher 9%
Doctor 7%
Sibling 7%
Other members of family 6%
Someone else 6%

Respondants would like to see a range of options not necessarily through GP and someone
to talk to

Young people are worried about being judged if they ask for help and don’t feel that they
necessarily trust a doctor enough to tell them exactly what is going on.

Friends were seen as a good source of support because they are with young people on a
regular basis, are normally the same age and young people would trust their advice
Perception that ‘something is wrong with you’ if you have poor mental health

Over a quarter of people asked didn’t know if services were available close by to help them if
they needed it

Almost 60% of young people had received counselling, however this may include a range of
support including mentoring at school, may be over different lengths of time and may not be
of a consistent quality.

Young people hear about emotional health through school lessons and youth work session
but the experience was inconsistent across schools and year groups

Other results could be due to relationship between teacher and student and whether young
people access youth services. Other members of the family wouldn’t be approached because
of concern that parents would be told.

RI

The Panel extends its congratulations to members of the Youth Cabinet for their work
in carrying out the survey of attitudes towards mental health that is referenced in this
report

R2

Representatives of Children and Young People Overview and Scrutiny Panel attend the
Youth Cabinet to feed back on the report and recommendations following task and
finish review

R3

The Council should consider the use of social media networks to promote consultation
initiatives

The panel heard that a number of services had developed prevention and promotion responses.
Schools in particular are playing a major role. In 2010, 97% of Plymouth schools achieved Healthy
School status. Healthy Schools Plus has now been rolled out in three phases with a total of 28
schools choosing to focus on mental health as their key area of need. A recent evaluation of this

Page 10 of 16




Page 73

programme showed that young people report they are better at managing their feelings and are
more ready to learn.

The panel heard from a headteacher:

e If a child is not ‘in a good place to learn’ then they will not progress. Whilst there is an underlying
drive towards teaching and learning schools are providing appropriate pastoral care to support
that learning. In addition, schools tend to be where a crisis happens and rapid support is needed.

¢ A range of pastoral support is available including learning mentors, pastoral leaders and family
liaison workers in school. Targeted services are bought in e.g. this school currently buys in two
days a week counselling service. There are good links with other services including voluntary and
community services, the Salvation Army, the Youth Service and a Connexions adviser

e The school workforce had been trained at the discretion of the headteacher to identify mental
health issues and to provide a first level of response.

e Where schools have a concern they will call a Common Assessment Framework (CAF) meeting.
Not all professionals attend which can lead to a delay in interventions starting, gaps in knowledge
and concern that not all professionals working with the family have heard the issues. Sometimes
the meeting is delayed or does not go ahead — instead being escalated via another route. In
particular Educational Psychologists and Communication Interaction professionals miss meetings.
This in effect leaves the issue as a school problem when the support of other agencies is needed.

e Headteachers had to make choices about how to allocate resources. Many schools worked
together to provide support through economies of scale. Schools do not have a clear framework
around levels of support and share expertise across school areas, sometimes developing pilots
together.

R4 The Children’s Trust allocates responsibility to a lead agency to develop a framework
that clearly identifies the roles of statutory and non-statutory agencies and the
resources available both in prevention and early intervention work with regard to
mental health among children and young people.

R5 The Children’s Trust review reasons for non attendance of key professionals at
Common Assessment Framework meetings, and make recommendations to ensure that
such meetings are timely and properly resourced, with particular attention being paid to
the role of Educational Psychologists and communication interaction professionals.

The panel heard that the Plymouth Community Healthcare had commissioned a series of leaflets
promoting mental health to children, young people and young adults. The leaflets had been
designed based on survey evidence from young people through Routeways and the actual format
was developed by students at Notre Dame school. The leaflets had been launched in April 201 |
and the level of reach would be tested in an upcoming survey of young people this Autumn.

Panel members were concerned that the language used in the leaflets was duplicated across all
age groups and the only apparent customisation was in the use of pictures or photographs. It
was felt by several members of the panel that the text used whilst general was not accessible or
engaging for target audiences, particularly older young people.

Panel heard that the leaflet was left in key areas on school sites and the issues formed part the
wider Social Emotional A Literacy curriculum.

Ré6 Plymouth Community Healthcare (PCH) prepare a communications strategy with
respect to children and young people’s mental health and revise content of media as
appropriate

Page || of 16



Page 74

6c. Early Intervention

A broad range of services were commissioned by members of the Children’s Trust to deliver
counselling or psychological therapy services. This support was either on a consultative basis —
for example providing support including training to professionals working with children and
families, or on a more directive basis with direct work — typically counselling or psychological
therapy including family therapy being provided directly to the young person. There is mixed
opinion about sufficiency of services — including a feeling that young people are having a lot of
direct, informal work through support staff working as para-professionals.

The Excellence Cluster described their services:

o Providing mentoring support, counselling and therapeutic support and integrated
professional sport advising professionals and schools.

o Providing intensive support at ealiest stage — not normal, service model designed around
the child as opposed to the professional working with thechild.

e Working as part of a practice network with other professionals providing psychological
support at a targeted level — coordinated by CAMHS, Routeways, Zone, Hamoaze etc. However
need to do more to develop model of cohesive and connected services. Perception that there is
‘plenty of work for everyone’.

. Reported a high degree of interest from schools with previous linked schools reinvesting /
recycling their package of support so that other schools can have same experience

o Reported requests from schools and other services to review targeted intervention and
how funding is used to access counselling and therapeutic work to ensure spread and access and
so de-escalate need.

The Excellence Cluster described perceived gaps in service provision:

family therapy in primary and secondary schools

limited access to art or drama therapy then only provided after been through different elements
of service

time limits on services don’t necessarily meet with needs of the child.

not all schools take up service — secondary schools may get cheaper service elsewhere

lower cost or free to access counselling services

R7 The Panel commends the Excellence Cluster for their flexible approach to the delivery
of services and the best practice demonstrated in their work

Among the examples given was the Zone’s counselling service. This was an open access service
that was funded via Public Health. It was recently publicly announced that the Zone would be
ceasing the CAMHS service. In a paper submitted to the panel the organisation suggested that
demand outstripped the level of funding and that it felt that it could no longer subsidise the
service. According to the report, demand increased by 36% year on year with 136 young people
seen in the first quarter.

The panel asked witnesses about the service, some had used the service to support young

people as an independent setting outside school. Witnesses had not been made aware of the
closure of the service nor of alternative provision available in the City.

Page 12 of 16




Page 75

R8 PCC and PCT commissioners review the range of early intervention services available
and assess the value for money of the range of options.

R9 The Council ensures that key universal services including schools and youth services are
notified of alternative counselling services available in the city.

The panel heard from the Educational psychology service about the reorganisation of services
around localities with a more focussed offer of prevention and early intervention support for
children and young people. In the new service design multi-disciplinary teams would include staff
from educational psychology service, youth service and education welfare. All schools have a
linked educational psychologist and the locality approach should provide an additional layer of
support. Essentially though the service is on consultative basis — direct work can be provided but
is costly compared to other providers.

RI0 | The Council update the Panel regarding the impact of new multi-disciplinary locality
teams on Children’s emotional well being and mental health services in six months

The panel were told by representatives in the voluntary and community sector that

e  young people and young adults, particularly young women were concerned that services
were not available, that there were often long waiting lists and services were not generally
available in their communities. For example, specialist counselling such as for sexual abuse or
rape could have 3-6months waiting time.

e  there was very limited access to free counselling and to counselling for under 18’s and
there was no therapeutic work in the City.

o Mental illness is often hidden and can be avoided through prevention work earlier on.

6d. SPECIALIST SERVICES

In-patient care Plymouth Primary Care Trust (PCT) has commissioned an in patient CAMHS
unit, Plymbridge Unit in partnership with Devon, Torbay and Cornwall PCTs. This is a variable
contract which depends on uptake. There are 12 bed spaces available for the Peninsula.

Community Specialist Services Plymouth PCT and Plymouth City Council have specific
funding for CAMHS which has been bought together as an aligned budget since 2005. In 2010 a
Joint Commissioning and Pooled Funding Agreement was established under Section 75 of the
National Health Service Act. Under this agreement the PCT act as the lead commissioner.

The overall budget in the pooled fund for this service is:

Plymouth PCT £ 2,582,000
Plymouth City Council £ 731,006
Total Pooled Fund £ £3,313, 006.00

Page 13 of 16



Page 76

This model includes:

a.  An Outreach Team: To manage the needs of Children and Young People who are at risk
to themselves or others.

b.  An enhanced service for Children in Care: Co-located with Children’s Social Care

c.  An enhanced service for those with Severe and Profound Learning Disability: Working with
Special Schools and the Integrated Disability Team

d.  An Infant Mental Health Team: Working with parents and 0-5 year olds who are presenting
with mental health need.

e. A Multi-Disciplinary team: Operating a Single Point of Access to mental health intervention
for those who do not require an emergency or enhanced response. This also includes enhanced
provision to the Youth Offending Service.

All teams except the multi-disciplinary team are delivering the expected volume of service. The
latest report from the service shows there are 254 children and young people waiting for an
assessment, with the longest wait being 32 weeks. Over 90 children are waiting longer than the
contracted |8 week period.

The contract is monitored on a quarterly basis and capacity issues began to emerge in the 2™
quarter 2010/1 | — six months into the new contract. The panel received a chronology of
activities since then that log concerns and on behalf of commissioners in PCT and PCC demand
improvement action plans. The issue had also been escalated to key partnership and executive
boards including the Plymouth Safeguarding Children’s Board, Plymouth Children and Young
People’s Trust and the NHS Plymouth Trust Board.

Between June 201 | and September 201 |, feedback from the provider has not included a
satisfactory improvement plan to improve access. Concerns have been fed back from clinicians
that the caseload was more complex than anticipated and as a result that clinicians were not able
to deliver expected turnover in cases. Additional information was received however that
suggested that vacancy freezes had reduced capacity within the team exacerbating the issues.

In October 2011, an intervention plan has been developed by the commissioners and
representatives of the provider to develop an emergency response to the excessive waiting list.
This was shared with the panel as a confidential document awaiting signoff by PCH Board.

Representatives of Plymouth Community Healthcare attended and fed back:

e Only one of five teams had a waiting list

. Clinicians were indicating that the caseload included significant risk cases in their opinion
and this had led to a backlog. It was felt that by the time cases get to treatment issues are
complex and that this absorbs team capacity.

o First priority was to bring the current referral to treatment time back down to |18 weeks.
It is planned to review the current caseload in a multi-agency panel — identifying whether
appropriate or alternative services could be put in place to support families including removing
names from the list. With an understanding of the cases and capacity PCH would be able to
project how long it will take to reduce down the waiting list.

o Second priority to review the working model of the multi-disciplinary team to achieve a
faster throughput of cases on a more sustainable basis — this is expected to be delivered by end
of March 2012.

o PCH asserted that there are not enough staff to respond to the need of the community
but recognized that the team is not performing within existing expectations.

Page 14 of 16



Page 77

o PCH asserted that the clinician group was autonomous and that their judgement must be
taken regarding levels of risk and most appropriate package of care

Members of the panel were concerned that the issues regarding the multi-disciplinary team
coincided with wider issues around the reorganisation of the provider service into a social
enterprise model. That organisational context combined with the failure to respond in a timely
manner escalated the risk of delivering actions that would keep children safe in their
communities and presented concerns about transparency. The panel was particularly concerned
about the impact that pressures on the multi-disciplinary team waiting lists would have both for
individuals and families on the waiting list and on other services for children.

RI An urgent summit meeting to be arranged between strategic leads from CYPOSP, PCC,
PCT and PCH regarding the findings of this report

The panel heard from Routeways regarding projects that provided advocacy services for young
people in the secure unit and participation work “In Other Words” with young people using
CAMHS to empower young people that access the service to challenge their workers. CAMHS
staff put forward young people who may benefit from the service and to date only 6 young
people were working with the service. Young people fed back that they were generally happy
with the service with some minor complaints.

RI2 PCH review the cost effectiveness of participation support services for young people
using mental health services

Feedback was received from other witnesses that:

e  waiting times can be 6 months or more with known cases of 12 months, and up to two
weeks if high risk

o referrals via a GP were treated more quickly than referrals from school.

o Once in the system there needs to be greater transparency for cases and better
engagement between multi-disciplinary team clinicians and other professionals — for example
clinicians making recommendations that don’t fit with a school structure and not investigating
other factors including bullying.

o Schools are not necessarily made aware if children are medicated and sometimes there can
be delay between work with children and the report reaching schools.

o CAMHS workers experiencing a crisis in terms of workload etc

o Individual cases where CAMHS are cancelling appointments over a series of months — so
child is not engaging in therapy, no replacements if workers are ill or no maternity cover.

o where children do not attend service is withdrawn — concern that non attendance is not
seen as a symptom of mental illness as opposed to as a reason for not providing service.

RI3 The Children’s Trust investigate and report on ways in which the work of clinicians and
other children’s professionals can be better coordinated with respect to mental health
support

Witnesses representing Plymouth City Council and Plymouth Primary Care Trust Cluster
commented as follows:

Page 15 of 16




Page 78

e An action plan had been developed to tackle the waiting list.

e nationally few people have the expertise to provide the service, so it is difficult to substitute with
another service

e there is a good history of partnership working but the delays are unacceptable. Commissioners
had to give the provider the opportunity to understand the problem — prevalence, demand and
activity. Commissioners were looking for the provider to create a response, which had not
been timely or sufficient and the intervention plan was developed to support those families
affected.

e there was a need to get the service to work alongside other people across the City if and when
the service improves sustainably.

e the ultimate sanction is to find an alternative supplier, however Commissioners were concerned
that due to the delay in tendering the service this would not ensure that young people on the
waiting list would be seen any sooner. However, this has not been rejected as an option.

e PCC has responsibility to act under probity for LA finance, responsibility through the section 75
agreement and through wider corporate parenting role and the Children and Young People’s
Trust. Under the s75 agreement, if PCC felt that the agreement was no longer working the
Council could issue notice and withdraw cash in line with the agreement. However, other
elements of the agreement were working well — such as the support to children in care.

e The issue has been escalated to the Plymouth Safeguarding Children Board and the Children and
Young People’s Trust who are holding this as an urgent issue to resolve. The Children’s Trust
Executive are clear that this action plan is an intervention plan and are clear in their challenge to
the provider. The solutions that are provided are put forward to consider and safeguard the
whole needs of children and families — the delays are putting pressure on other areas of
children’s lives including education. The timing of scrutiny review coincides with the actions that
are being taken to escalate and resolve the issues.

R14 The Childrens Trust establishes a clear and transparent process for the identification,
monitoring and escalation of issues such as those identified in this report.

RI5 Commissioners from the Children’s Trust provide interim updates to CYPOSP on the
response to these recommendations.

Page 16 of 16



Page 79 Agenda Item 8

CHILDREN AND YOUNG
PEOPLE OVERVIEW &
SCRUTINY PANEL S .

|0 November 201 | CITY COUNCIL

Introduction: Integrated Youth Support Service

The latest House of Commons Education Committee report (October 201), Services for young
people the Government response, reaffirms the Local Authority Duty to provide sufficient
services for young people stating that ‘this is especially important given that 85% of young people’s
time is spent outside formal education’.

In relation to supporting young people who are particularly vulnerable, including those with
emotional and mental health needs, the evidence for delivery of professional youth services
supports that:

“ There is little doubt that good youth services can have a transformational effect on young
people’s lives and can play a vital role both in supporting vulnerable young people and in
enriching the lives of others’

‘...the most effective response to social issues is often through a blend of open-access and
targeted approaches’

‘...the purpose of youth services should primarily be to offer positive activities and
enriching personal and social experiences and not solely as a mechanism to divert young
people from misbehavior.’

House of Commons Education Committee report (October 201 )

I. The case for intervention with Young People: DfE Youth research Team July I 1|

‘Whilst intervention in early years is clearly essential, young people can face difficulties during teenage
years that require timely intervention to prevent them escalating into major problems’

‘Half of those with lifetime mental health problems first experienced symptoms by the age of 14 and three
quarters before their mid-20s....10-13% of 15-16 year olds have self harmed’.

Earlier multi-agency intervention and prevention with Youth Services, particularly at Tiers |1& 2 of
the CAMHS model, is therefore important to:

I. Respond to the externalities of young people’s behaviour, either positive or negative
impacts.

2. To ensure young people have good information on the consequences of their decisions and

active encouragement to take up positive self development activities and to discourage

them from potentially harmful activities.

Enable all young people to develop skills regardless of their socioeconomic background

4. Provide support during teenage years that can raise outcomes and help close the poverty

&ap

w

Version 3. 25 Oct 2011 Not protectively marked



Page 80

5. Respond early to those young people who develop significant needs for the first time
during adolescence

6. Reduce the impact of problems when things go wrong for young people as the outcomes
can be particularly damaging and costly for them and society.

7. Recognise that what young people do out of school matters — there is a positive
association between engaging activities and wider outcomes

8. Invest in targeted youth programmes that have been evidenced to be cost effective

2. Current commitments to Young People’s Emotional Wellbeing & Mental Health

I. A training programme is currently being rolled out for all frontline staff aimed at
recognising and responding to mental and emotional distress including tools and techniques
to promote young people’s mental and emotional wellbeing.

2. Ongoing targeted youth programmes focusing on diversion from false support systems e.g.
drugs, alcohol, risk taking behaviour.

3. Provision of somewhere to go, something to do and importantly someone to talk to
who will listen and support positive thinking, self esteem and confidence building.

4. Targeted and open access group work that builds on skills such as self esteem, confidence,
interactive skills and taking directions from people in charge, getting to school on time etc.

5. From September 201 |, Educational Psychology, Education Welfare and Youth Service staff
working in integrated locality teams focusing on young people’s mental and emotional
wellbeing.

3. Examples of the Integrated Youth Service’s targeted groups include:

I. No Limits for young people with disabilities or learning difficulties. Focus on self esteem
and identity, healthy eating, fitness and social development.

2. Out Youth Group (LGBTQ) focus on |:1 support, family and relationship issues, MH and
substance misuse, confidence, identity and self esteem

3. Intensive Support Team focusing on vulnerability, homelessness, family breakdown, 1:1
intensive support on risk taking behaviour, education and employment, self esteem and
confidence.

4. Asylum Seekers supporting young people who have suffered severe trauma, both
physical and emotional, issues of isolation, confidence and distress concerning the
immediate future.

5. Young Carers Group supporting young people who are recognised as having particular
emotional support and developmental needs and who often cannot access regular support
networks.

All of the examples above have young people who are at high risk of developing social, emotional
or mental health problems and many young people currently involved are already assessed as
having significant MH issues and known to Tier 3/4 services.

4. Current issues faced by young people in the City include:

I. Economic factors have been shown to have an important link to young people’s subjective
well-being (Children’s Society 201 1). Lower levels of household income and greater adult
economic concerns are impacting on young people’s emotional wellbeing and mental
health. As a result there appears to be an increase in requests for intervention in relation
to young people’s behavior that has associated family economic factors or stressors.



Page 81

2. Achievements at school have a direct link to secure emotional and social development.
Schools have recently identified that they need other services to support young people at
an earlier stage to further improved achievement and individual social/emotional
development. Multi-disciplinary locality teams are responding to these needs.

5. Key evidence based approaches/principles in early intervention and prevention to
promote young people’s mental and emotional wellbeing in the Integrated Youth
Service include:

I. The quality of the relationships with staff supporting young people is paramount. Research
highlights effective preventive approaches contain 3 key elements:

a. Fun and engaging activities to develop relationships with young people
b. Working towards practical goals with the young person
c. Creation of opportunities explore emotions

2. Involvement of parents also has been evidenced to improve outcomes. It is important:
a. To avoid rivalry with parents
b. Not to marginalise parents
c. To discuss with parents and young people what they feel is needed to help

It will, therefore, be important to consider the development of work with parents within the
multi-disciplinary support being offered to ensure that the young person’s needs are considered
within the wider family context.

6. Access to Youth Support
Access to support within the Integrated Youth/Locality Offer can happen at a variety of stages:

I. Open access through Youth Centers and planned positive activities

2. Through targeted youth groups both referred and open access

3. Through universal settings such as schools and health services via the locality/area based
teams using CAF or direct working arrangements

4. Referral via CAF from specialist services such as Social Care or CAMHS

This continuum of access also facilitates timely transition to appropriate levels of support
according to the changing needs of young people.

7. Further Improvements

I. The Locality Service is currently exploring how it may further improve promotion of the
Youth Offer (I1-19) specifically around access to Emotional Wellbeing and Mental Health.

2. Training in Mental Health Support for Youth Workers and other support staff is underway
and further developments building on the TaHMS work in schools are currently being
considered between CAMHS and the PCC Locality Service.

3. Improved joint working in locality teams is being considered with primary mental health
workers and school nurses.

4. Workforce development training in STORM is being rolled out to frontline practitioners
with a Senior Educational Psychologist and Senior Professional Youth Worker from the
Locality Service as part of the training team.



Page 82

8. Structure of the Youth Service

The service is currently undergoing a significant reorganisation to support a new Children and
Young People’s Services locality delivery framework. This has necessitates changes to the
structure to ensure area based provision is well linked to the new multi-disciplinary locality teams.
City-wide teams such as Streetwise and the Intensive Support Team are now deployed into the
multi-disciplinary locality teams that will focus their efforts on the most vulnerable children and
young people. A recent review of CAMHS waiting lists highlights that 42% of young people
currently awaiting specialist assessment or intervention are already known to the youth service
with some receiving intensive or targeted youth support in collaboration with Primary Mental
Health workers.

The current number of full time equivalent (fte) youth workers is 51.5 ftes with a ratio of | fte
worker to 477 young people (13-19 years). There are 4 fte Senior Youth Officers and | fte Head
of Service.

There are |3 fte admin/business support workers across the city-wide service, however, 2.1 ftes
are currently being held as vacancies. They support in total | |3 individual workers made up of 89
staff, 9 apprentices and 15 adult volunteers.

This structure diagram Strategic
illustrates one of the recently
formed multi-disciplinary
teams with the Head of Youth
Services currently carrying
out the additional duties of
Strategic Locality Lead for
Plympton and Central & Senior Officer
North East and professional 0-11

lead for | 1-19 services. The
four Senior Youth Officers
are leading the 0-19 multi-
disciplinary locality teams and
the area based youth work

Locality Lead

Senior Officer

[1-19

teams within their designated Locality Multi Area Based Locality Multi
areas of the cit Disciplinary Locality Youth Disciplinary
Y- Team Work Team Team
0-11 11-19

9. Break down of average full-time (37 hour per week) Youth Worker

I. Face to Face performance is targeted at 50%, however, all teams aim for at least 60%
direct contact with young people. Achievement is currently at 59.5 % for 201 1-12.

2. Indirect work on behalf of young people accounts, on average, for approximately 25% of
a workers time. This activity includes advocacy work, session planning, CAF work and
reviews, development activities, accreditation work, travel to projects and venues, setting
up and taking down time.

3. Business activities account for approximately 15% of a workers time and include activities
such as supervision, appraisal, email, team meetings, training and sickness absence.



Page 83

10. Centre, Outreach and Street Based Working

The ratios of these activities are constantly changing due to a variety of factors including, what
young people have told us they want, the time of year, issues identified by partners or
communities, however, it is possible to approximate average activity levels from practice

experience and performance data.
I. Home Centre work accounts for approximately 40% of an area team activity.

2. Outreach work accounts for approximately 60% of an area teams activity with:
a. 70% street-based
b. 30% venue based

I 1. Customer Satisfaction

Young people are routinely surveyed across the full service offer on a monthly basis and we are
averaging a 97.6% of young people satisfied with the service they receive. Peer review, mystery
shopping and quality assurance visits to internal and external projects are routinely carried out to
ensure effectiveness of delivery, outcomes and value for money.

John Miller, Head of Integrated Youth Support,
Department for services for Children and Young People

October 201 |



Page 84

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 85 Agenda Item 9

CHILDREN AND YOUNG
PEOPLE OVERVIEW &
SCRUTINY PANEL S .

|0 November 201 | CITY COUNCIL

University Technical College

University Technical Colleges (UTC) are a new government initiative which aims to offer 14-19
year olds the opportunity to take a highly regarded, technically-orientated course of study at a
college that is equipped to industrial standards. They are usually sponsored by a University or FE
College and they offer clear progression routes into either higher education or higher level
apprenticeships in a place of employment. Young people may transfer to the UTC at the end of
Year || from other educational providers in order to pursue advanced technical courses.

In the Spring of 201 | the Secretary of State for Education announced that a number of UTCs
would be developed working with the Baker Dearing Foundation, these were promoted by Lord
Baker. Following this announcement an application process was developed for universities and
colleges to submit bids for UTC funding, the closing date was mid June 201 |.

For Plymouth, the Council and its partners have declared a new set of priorities via the Local
Strategic Partnership (LSP). The need to create a skilled workforce within the context of a higher
wage economy is at the heart of the priority to create economic regeneration and wealth for the
city. Similarly the LSP is committed to the priority to raise aspiration and achievement so that
young people have the necessary skills to take advantage of future job opportunities.

Whilst Plymouth has been relatively successful in driving down the number of young people Not in
Education, Employment or Training (NEET) in recent years a significant number of young people
(65%) are currently within this category. This would suggest that for a significant number of young
people the “learning offer” that the city currently provides does not match their needs.

The concentration of NEET young people reside in the west of the city in the NW, SW and SE
localities. These localities are also the coastal locations of marine economic activity. It would
assist the city in developing a more inclusive and at the same time high quality offer to the young
people of the city if a UTC was set up in the west location preferably in the SW locality aligned to
the major businesses such as Babcock and Princess Yachts.

The current city policy out in Plymouth City Council Children’s Services Strategy for Change
Investment for Children shows how secondary pupil numbers are steadily decreasing but will start
to rise again in 2015. The policy the Council has been following with secondary places has been
one called “breathe in breathe out”. This is where secondary places have been pruned back to
allow for new growth as the demographic demand lifts.

There will be a raise of the participation age. This will mean that young people are required to

stay in education and training to 17 years of age by 2013 and to 18 years of age by 2015. There
will therefore be a rising demand over these years for additional post sixteen places, which has

been factored into the councils forecast of places.

A bid for a Plymouth based UTC was made by a consortium of proposers including the University
of Plymouth, The College of Further Education and Plymouth City Council, sponsored by the

20111018 v0.02 Not protectively marked



Page 86

major businesses of Babcock and Princess Yachts, as well as the Chamber of Commerce the Royal
Navy and federation of small businesses and up 20 other businesses in Plymouth. The bid was for
a 450 place UTC based at a Devonport location with the specialisms of Advanced Manufacturing
and Marine Engineering.

In total 37 Bids were made to the Government for UTC proposals across the country. On the
10" October 2011 the Government announced that |3 UTC’s would be taken forward and
Plymouth was among these. The announcement made clear that the Secretary of State hoped that
Plymouth UTC would be opened in 2014, but there were possibilities of an earlier start in 2013.

The Consortium of Partners and Sponsors have formed a steering group and are developing the
governing arrangements of what will become a UTC Trust. It will be this body that seeks to take
the proposals through the government stages of forming a UTC that is capable of signing a funding
agreement with Government similar to Academies.

The strong relationship the council has with it partners and particularly the University means that
the Council’s involvement with the development of the UTC is very strong. This has a very
valuable benefit as it allows the Authority to work with the UTC in developing an admission policy
that is complementary with other schools in the city. Given this development it is possible to
analyse and model the impact of the UTC. This work is ongoing and involves a consultation with
Academy and Community School Headteachers. The initial analysis has been based on considering
the exam results of 16-18 year olds and modelling the numbers of young people to which a UTC
with a manufacturing and engineering specialism would be attractive. The picture that is emerging
shows that students from all schools within the city could be attracted by the opportunities.
Included in the analysis is the attraction there will be to the UTC from outside the city boundaries
and in particular Torpoint given the proposed location. Whilst incomplete at this stage, the
analysis is indicating that a maximum of 15 Y| students from any one school might choose a
UTC over a traditional school place.

The timing of the UTC and how it expands to full capacity is also being taken into consideration.
Close working with the UTC will allow the Authority to understand very clearly the plans of how
the UTC will grow. It is early days but already we have an understanding that the planned growth
of the UTC is unlikely to be at capacity until 2016 and by this stage the very substantial growth in
the secondary age pupil numbers will begin to feed into Y7. This means that the challenge will be
for Secondary Academies to change their focus to the younger age range rather than reducing in
capacity.

Gareth Simmons
Programme Director for Learning Environments
Services for Children and Young People.

November 201 |



Page 87 Agenda Iltem 11

CHILDREN AND YOUNG
PEOPLE OVERVIEW &
SCRUTINY PANEL S .

|0 November 201 | CITY COUNCIL

l. Tackling Child Poverty — Making it everyone’s business

I.1 Tackling child poverty has been accepted as a key priority for Plymouth 2020 Partnership and
supports the delivery of one of the city and Council’s four priorities — reducing inequalities. As a
level one indicator it is championed by the Plymouth Children and Young People’s Trust but also
relies heavily on the actions of other strategic groups and organisations across the city. Tackling
child poverty is everybody’s business and this is essential if we are to effectively tackle the causes
and impact of child poverty.

.2 Child poverty is a priority in the Children & Young People’s Plan 201 |-14 and Cabinet has
already approved the higher level aims and actions described within it to tackle child poverty, and
with its 2020 partners, asked a multi agency group to develop a wider plan to engage all aspects of
work and agencies.

1.3 On the 13" September 201 I, Cabinet reaffirmed its commitment to tackling child poverty as
outlined within the Children and Young People’s Plan 201 1-2014 and approved the attached multi
agency delivery plan to cover the whole 2020 Partnership (see appendix ).

|.4 In order to monitor our progress toward tackling child poverty Cabinet also agreed to receive
an annual progress report, including the findings from an annual self-assessment engaging all
partners across the city.

[.5 This briefing provides members with an update on our progress so far in developing a citywide
approach to tackling child poverty including the accompanying multi agency delivery plan.

2. Understanding child poverty

2.1 The causes and consequences of child poverty, both temporary and persistent, are multiple
and complex. Child poverty is not caused simply due to a lack of money in the family - it is the
outcome of economic, environmental and social factors and inequalities that can damage a child’s
development and limit and prevent children and young people from having many of the
experiences and opportunities that others take for granted.

2.2 This understanding of child poverty is reflected in the government’s first national child poverty
strategy. This new approach considers children’s longer term development through home life,
family, education and health. Building on national consultation and independent reviews by Frank
Fields MP and Graham Allen MP, it also recommends a suite of additional measures that reflect
family resources, family circumstances and children’s life chances.

Version |, 28" October 201 | Not protectively marked



Page 88

2.3 In Plymouth:

=  One in four children and young people live in families that receive means tested
benefits.

= 63% of all children who had a Child Protection Plan during 2009/10 lived in the two
most deprived localities. ‘Neglect’ is cited as the primary reason for 43% of children
with a child protection plan.

* There is an educational attainment gap in the city. Children in receipt of Free School
Meals often achieve lower grades than their peers.

* The housing stock condition in the city has deteriorated significantly over the last five
years - the most vulnerable families are found in some of the poorest housing across
Plymouth.

= The North West and South West localities have the highest proportions of mothers
who continue to smoke during pregnancy.

2.4 In addition, the economic climate has a significant damaging impact on our children and young
people. Benefit changes that are being phased in affecting 51,000 people in the city will have a
damaging impact on lone parents and working families on low incomes. The experience locally is
that need and vulnerability is rising. Unemployment is up by 13% in the last year and exceeds
2009 figures with particular peaks in the 18-24 age group.

3. Our progress so far

3.1 A Local Government Group review (May 201 1), outlined the key characteristics of local
authority areas where child poverty is being addressed as a high priority. These include a high
level of strategic commitment and understanding, a view of child poverty as a cross cutting theme
across the LA area, as well as strong elected member support. Plymouth already demonstrates
such features. The Portfolio holder for Children and Young People has actively championed and
provided strong direction on behalf of the Local Authority and Plymouth 2020.

3.2 The local strategic approach to tackling child poverty is already being developed and the
Children and Young People’s Plan 201 1-14 has provided a solid base from which to develop a
whole city, multi-agency delivery plan, endorsed by Cabinet (see Appendix |). This plan has been
developed by key stakeholders including statutory agencies and the voluntary and community
sector. In addition, child poverty will need to be explicitly addressed within key strategies such as
housing, financial inclusion and worklessness.

3.3 A core multi-agency group made up of key stakeholders from across the Local Authority
(including housing, economic development, children services and social inclusion), JobCentre Plus,
NHS Plymouth, Public Health and the voluntary and community sector has been overseeing the
development and implementation of the local strategic approach. The main objectives of which are
to:

= Make child poverty everybody's business

* Reduce the number of children living in workless households

* Reduce housing related child poverty

*  Reduce the inequalities that have the most negative impact on children's life chances
* Improve young people's capability to manage finances sensibly.



Page 89

3.4 As part of developing our local strategic approach a self-assessment event was held in October
to assess the healthiness and effectiveness of our current approach to tackling child poverty in the
city. The self-assessment toolkit used was based on national best practice developed by Save the
Children. This toolkit enabled us to assess our city approach to tackling child poverty against three
areas; leadership and governance, performance management and commissioning and resources.

3.5 The headline findings from this event identified the following:

3.5.1 Leadership and Governance

Participants wanted a clearer vision for how we as a city will tackle child poverty; this was
centred on having a common understanding or definition of child poverty. A need was
identified for more coordination to support others to develop their own objectives to
support the city vision around child poverty.

3.5.2 Performance Management

Clear performance management arrangements for measuring progress around child
poverty are required that build on current 2020 indicators and targets. These need to tell a
story about child poverty in Plymouth and relate to a variety of areas e.g. housing,
worklessness, transport, education. They should also be used to inform service planning.

3.5.3 Commissioning and Resources

Embedding child poverty within planning, commissioning and resource allocation processes
will be key to effectively tackling child poverty in Plymouth. Participants strongly advocated
developing a core offer or minimum standard to families to tackle child poverty.

3.6 Based on the need for strong member support the self-assessment will be replicated at an
event for elected members on the 18" November 201 1. This workshop will provide the
opportunity for members to further shape the way in which the city tackles child poverty.

3.7 In addition, ongoing consultation is being undertaken with the Youth Council as part of the
Children & Young People’s Plan. The Youth Council is very keen to engage with this issue, in
particular defining what poverty means to them and their families.

4. Recommendation

4.1 It is recommended that members note the content of this report.

Candice Sainsbury
Senior Policy, Performance and Partnerships Advisor

Policy, Performance and Partnerships

28" October 201 |



Page 90



Appendix | Children & Young People's Plan 2011 - 14 Delivery Plan

Priority 3

Tackle Child Poverty

William Woyka

Objective

Lead

Key Milestones

3.1 Make child poverty

everybody's business;

Children's Trust

Recognition of child poverty within relevant
strategies and theme groups plans. Child poverty
strategy developed. Child poverty is acknowledged
within delivery plans for worklessness, housing,
economic development and financial inclusion. Gaps
are identified and agreed by Plymouth 2020 Exec &
Board.

reebed

3.2 Reduce the number of

children living in

workless households;

Plymouth 2020

Executive Group

Action Link

3.1.1  Raise the profile of child poverty across Plymouth Candice Sainsbury, PPP
2020 and all theme groups, with a specific focus on
the Growth Board and Health and Wellbeing Board.

3.1.2 Develop a citywide Child Poverty strategy that is Candice Sainsbury, PPP
underpinned by key delivery plans such as
worklessness, economic development, children and
young people's plan, housing and financial inclusion.

3.1.3  Generate high level local engagement with the South [William Woyka,

West regional child poverty network, taking full Routeways
advantage of collaborative links and opportunities
both regionally and nationally.

3.1.4 Undertaken a city wide self assessment on child Candice Sainsbury, PPP
poverty and identify key gaps and barriers to be
addressed within the child poverty strategy.

3.1.5 Capture and share local successes and lessons learned |Jo Hall, Early Years &
based from the incorporation of child poverty Fiona Fleming,
indicators within commissioning processes across the [Children's
City. Commissioning

3.2.1 Promote the targeting of 18-24yr olds and parents as |Mark Looker, Economic
priority groups within the draft Worklessness Development
strategy.

3.2.2 In collaboration with the Worklessness and Financial |Lucy Stapleton, Job

Inclusion groups, establish a task and finish group to
identify the key barriers to lone parents' ability to
access high quality employment, and develop

recommendations to address this.

Centre Plus




3.23

In collaboration with the Worklessness and Financial
Inclusion groups, establish a task and finish group to
fully understand the impact of welfare changes on
both in-work and workless families, and provide
recommendations to ensure parents are fully able to

maximise their income.

Jo Hambly, Social

Inclusion

3.24

Engage with the Worklessness group to promote self
employment as a route out of unemployment for

families with children.

Mark Looker, Economic

Development

3.25

Through commissioning and procurement processes
champion the development and maintenance of a local

workforce.

Fiona Fleming,
Children's

Commissioning

3.3 Reduce housing related |Housing Strategic|3.3.1  Ensure city wide partners deliver effective and Jo Hambly, Social Smooth Migration to 2014 Universal credit when
child poverty; Group responsive solutions to young people negatively Inclusion introduced
affected by housing benefit changes. Further explore imaginative ways of meeting the
3.3.2 Promote increased access to decent and affordable  |TBC housing need of vulnerable groups with developers,
housing for families with children through the registered social landlord's and the private rented
upcoming housing strategy, with improved housing sector
options for larger families to combat overcrowding. Seek milestones from the Housing Plan when
available.
3.3.3 Reduce the incidence of homelessness, amongst Matt Garrett, Housing
young people and families with children, through
access to good quality supported and independent
housing choices and with advice and support for the
most vulnerable
3.3.4 Ensure provision of good quality accommodation with
support to teenage parents to address their significant
social and financial exclusion.
3.4 Reduce the inequalities |Early Years Increase the number of children who achieve a good level of |Alison Mackenzie, Early Years Foundation Stage Profile data: August
that have the most Strategic development and school readiness by: Public Health & Jo Hall, [2011 and 2011 ( new assessment will be statutory

negative impact on

children's life chances;

Partnership

34.1

Providing effective support for parents to develop

good parenting skills.

Early Years

after this )

Increase in uptake of evidence based parenting




3.4.2 Increased access to universal high quality early years programmes
education, with additional focus on disadvantaged 2
year olds. Increase % settings deemed good/better by Ofsted
3.43 Ensuring all children have good communication and
language skills, and social and emotional development, Increase number of free nursery places offered to
with effective early intervention to improve disadvantaged 2 year olds
outcomes.
3.44 Targeting interventions to the most vulnerable Improved outcomes in CLLD and PSED and a
families and sustaining contact. reduction in the gender gap in early years
3.45 Addressing health inequalities that will impact on attainment and improve outcomes for the 20%
child’s later intellectual development: i. maternal lowest achievers
mental and physical health, ii. parental mental health,
iii. low birth weight, iv. Breastfeeding. Increase in sustained contact with vulnerable
families
3.5 Improve young Children's Trust |3.5.1 Identify and address the gap in support services for  [Karl Sweeney, Lifelong [TBC
people's capability to children and young people, which are able to deliver [Learning
manage finances financial capability support in schools and other
sensibly settings.
3.5.2 Provide opportunities for young people to learn how |Jo Hambly, Social
to manage their finances through access to Credit Inclusion
Union Banks within schools;
3.5.3 Engage with private sector partners to develop Karl Sweeney, Lifelong

imaginative ways to deliver financial capability sessions

in schools.

Learning

egobeg




Page 94

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 95 Agenda Item 12

N PART
\é@ ~¢¢.’
$ %
, %
3 PLYMOUTH YOUTH
3 OFFENDING SERVICE
&
2 &
2 o
Venr orre®

PLYMOUTH YOUTH OFFENDING SERVICE
YOUTH JUSTICE PLAN 2011/2012



Page 96

Contents Page
Plymouth Youth Offending Service Pledge 4
Executive Summary 5
Plymouth Crime Information 2010/201 | 6
National Context of Youth Justice 6
Youth Justice Board : 6
Developing Government Policy 7
Key Local Partnerships and Plans 7
Plymouth 2020 7
Plymouth Children and Young People’s Trust 7

The Plymouth Children and Young People's Plan 2011 to 2014 7

Plymouth Safeguarding Board 8
Plymouth Community Safety Partnership 9
Housing Plan 2012-2017 9
YOS Management Board 9
Nationally Monitored Targets for Youth Justice 10
Locally Monitored Outcomes for Youth Justice: | 10
Plymouth Youth Offending Service 10

Youth Offending Service Resources 1

Plymouth YOS Structure and Work Streams 14
Case Management Team 14
Programme Delivery Team 14
Restorative Justice Team 15

Delivery against Key National Indicators 16

Delivery against Local Targets 20



Page 97

Activity in Support of Key Performance Indicators and National Standards

Volunteers 25
Quality Assurance 25
Improving Public Confidence 26
Service User Participation 26

List of Acronyms

ACRONYMS

ASB ANTI SOCIAL BEHAVIOR

BME BLACK MINORITIES ETHNIC

DYO DETER YOUTH OFFENDING

EIG EARLY INTERVENTION GRANT

IST INTEGRATED SUPPORT TEAM

KYPE KEEPING YOUNG PEOPLE ENGAGED
PBR PAYMENT BY RESULTS

YCAP YOUTH CRIME ACTION PLAN

YISP YOUTH INCLUSION AND SUPPORT PROJECT
YOS YOUTH OFFENDING SERVICE

YRD YOUTH RESTORATIVE DISPOSAL



Page 98

Plymouth Youth Offending Service Pledge

We will provide a fair and equitable service that embraces the diversity of young people,
the people of Plymouth and its community.

We will improve access to services for young people to divert them from offending and
help them lead happy and productive lives.

We will encourage and Support young people to repair the harm they have done to
their victims and communities.

We will encourage young people to have aspirations and support them to make good
decisions and have a successful transition to adulthood.

We will work in partnership with parents and carers in helping them support their
young people make positive change.

We will work in partnerships with other agencies to reduce youth crime and protect
the public.

We will listen and work with victims and communities and will be open and accountable
for our service.

We will work hard to increase public confidence in youth justice.



Page 99

Executive Summary

Plymouth Youth Offending Service’s Youth Justice Plan has been developed in
accordance with the requirements of the Crime and Disorder Act 1998 and sets out
how youth justice services in Plymouth are to be provided and funded. It sets this
against both a national and local context. It gives information about how the youth
offending service operates, and what functions they are to carry out. It also lays out
priorities for the coming year and sets out how the YOS will aim to meet both its
national and local targets.

Plymouth YOS Management Board remains active in key decision making and ensuring
partners are all engaged in the delivery of Youth Justice Services and preventative work
across the city.

Plymouth YOS has worked throughout 2010/ | working on its Improvement Plan
following the HMIP Inspection report which was published early in 2010 following what
was a pleasing set of Inspection Results. Much of this work focused on the development
of a robust quality assurance framework and the updating of policies and procedures.
This was supported by additional management resources.

There has also been much work around preparing the service for the challenges of the
financial climate and developing government policy. This has included the planning ofa
restructure of the service in line with its objectives and the government Green Paper
Breaking the Cycle: Effective Punishment, Rehabilitation and Sentencing of Offenders.
This paper addresses all three of the government priorities of punishing offenders,
protecting the public and reducing reoffending.

Plymouth YOS remains a forward thinking and ambitious service which is aiming for
excellence. It has a critical role in the drive to reduce the fear of crime and to raise
Young Offenders aspirations and to support them in achieving their potential and
successful transition to adulthood.

A driver for 2011/2012 is the embedding of the principles of Restorative Justice
throughout the work of the YOS. The YOS Management Board has aligned resources
so that the YOS has the capacity to do this and to enable the service to have a
dedicated Victim Advocacy Worker to ensure that the voice of the victim is considered
in all aspects of the YOS's work. An additional aim is for members of the community,
including young people, to be involved in all aspects of the service including influencing
its direction and methodology and ensuring that resources meet both community and
individual needs.

The service is also aiming to increase the focus of work towards parents and the whole
family to address negative patterns of behaviour that increase the risk of offending and
ensure parental responsibility. The service will continue to provide a fair and equitable
service to young people with a focus on risk management based on rigorous |
assessments of likelihood of reoffending, risk of harm and vulnerability.



Page 100

Plymouth Crime Information 2010/201 |

The Plymouth Report (2010) produced by Plymouth 2020 states that ‘Plymouth is a
comparatively safe city when compared to other urban conurbations, with falling overall
crime, particularly acquisitive crime, such as theft of and from vehicles, domestic
burglary and robbery. Offending linked to the night time economy and alcohol remains
problematic for the city with drunkenness, alcohol related violence and offences such as
sexual assaults and domestic abuse main issues. Violence against the person has reduced
over the past few years, though the city still performs poorly against its national
comparative group for assault related crimes.’

In respect of crime relating to young people there too has been a reduction in crime.
The number of young people offending (2010/11) has reduced from 587 to 557and the
number of offences committed in 2010/1 | by young people has reduced from 1055 to
1041. This amounts to reductions of 5.1% and 1.3% respectively.

The most prevalent detected crimes for young people are:

2009/10 2010/11
Violence against the person 234 201
Theft and Handling 227 192
Public Order 166 145
Criminal Damage 182 129

It is also noted that motoring offences committed by young people have decreased
substantially from 178 in 2009/10 to 43 in 2010/1 | a reduction of 76%.

The area experiencing the highest number of both offences and young offenders is
Plympton, with St Budeaux second in young people’s terms. Other areas experiencing
higher than average levels of young people offending and generally a higher number of
offences in no particular order are Honicknowle, Plymstock, Devonport, Stonehouse
and North Prospect.

National Context of Youth Justice

Youth Justice Board

The Youth Justice Board for England and Wales (Y]B) is an executive non-departmental
public body within the Ministry of Justice which; oversees the youth justice system in
England and Wales, works to prevent offending and reoffending by children and young
people under the age of 18 and ensures that custody for them is safe, secure, and
addresses the causes of their offending behaviour. It's vision of an effective youth justice
system is that:- more offenders are caught, held to account for their actions and stop .
offending, children and young people receive the support they need to lead crime free
lives, victims are better supported and the public has more confidence in the youth
justice system.



Page 101

Developing Government Policy

In December 2010 the Green Paper Breaking the Cycle: Effective Punishment,
Rehabilitation and Sentencing of Offenders addressed all three of the government
priorities of punishing offenders, protecting the public and reducing reoffending. It set
out how an intelligent sentencing framework, coupled with more effective rehabilitation
would enable the breaking of the cycle of crime and prison. Within the paper there is a
focus on early intervention and preventative work with a commitment to intervening
early in the lives of children at risk and their families, before behaviour becomes
entrenched, which presents the best opportunity to break the cycle of crime alongside
greater parental responsibility. There was also a clear commitment to Restorative
Justice with moves to ensure that victims have a more central role in the criminal justice
system. The paper also introduced the idea of Payment by results to drive
improvements in performance, incentivise the diversification of providers and increase
accountability.

Key Local Partnerships and Plans

Plymouth 2020

The aim of Plymouth 2020 is to provide strong leadership for the transformation of the
city and to promote a positive image of Plymouth as a vibrant waterfront city where an
excellent quality of life is enjoyed by everyone. The priorities for Plymouth 2020 are to:
Deliver Growth, Raise Aspirations, Reduce Inequalities and to Provide Value for
Communities. The public, private and voluntary and community sectors are all
represented on the Partnership Board, Executive and Theme Groups.

Plymouth Children and Young People’s Trust

Plymouth Children and Young People’s Trust is a formal partnership that brings
together everyone in the city who works with children, young people and their families.
Parent carers and young people are also members of the partnership. The purpose of
the Plymouth Children and Young People's Trust is to: provide strategic direction for
the development of children's and young people’s services in Plymouth, provide
leadership on the development of integrated services for children and young people,
support the achievement of national and local agency targets by developing closer and
linked ways of planning, delivery and improving services for children, young people and
their families and to implement the priorities in the Children’s and Young People’s Plan.
The Trust’s vision is that all our children and young people Live, Grow, Achieve and
Exceed in their Hopes for the Future.

The Plymouth Children and Young People's Plan 2011 to 2014

The Plymouth Children and Young People's Plan has been developed by Plymouth
Children and Young People's Trust and describes the joint agency approach in the local



Page 102

authority area for children and young people’s services, and sets out the vision and key
priorities agreed by those agencies in helping children and young people to achieve the
best outcome. In Plymouth the Youth Offending Service is one of a number of services
for young people that deliver the key priorities of Plymouth’s Children and Young
People’s Plan 2011-2014 identified in support of Plymouth 2020’s improvement
priorities. '

Plymouth 2020 Priority: Deliver Growth

Children and Young People’s Plan 201 | — 2014 Priority 4: Equip young people
with skills, knowledge and opportunities to make a successful transition to
adulthood.

Plymouth 2020 Priority: Raise Aspirations

Children and Young People’s Plan 201 | — 2014 Priority 3: Improve levels of
achievement for all children and young people

Plymouth 2020 Priority: Reduce Inequality

Children and Young People’s Plan 201 | — 2014 Priority |: Decrease the effects
of child poverty

Children and Young People’s Plan 2011 — 2014 Priority 2: Provide all children
with the best possible start to life

Plymouth 2020 Priority: Provide value for communities

Children and Young People’s Plan 2011 — 2014 Priority 5: Tackle risk taking
behaviours

Plymouth Safeguarding Board

The role of the Plymouth Safeguarding Children Board is an essential element in
ensuring that there is the highest level of scrutiny, ownership and accountability with
regards to safeguarding as it affects the lives of all children and young people. The
Board is charged to seek assurances from all agencies that they are working together to
keep children and young people safe across the city and to provide challenge when
necessary and to raise awareness of safeguarding issues.

Safeguarding is everyone's business across agencies and communities. Working together
is fundamental to the protection of children and young people to keep them safe from
harm. The role of the Board in promoting, monitoring, challenging and ensuring that this
is a reality continues to be paramount. The YOS manager is a member of the
Safeguarding Board.

The Plymouth Safeguarding Children’s Board role is to monitor, scrutinize and

contribute to the planning and delivery of children and young people’s services through
the Children and Young People's Strategic Plan.



Page 103

Plymouth Community Safety Partnership

The Plymouth Community Safety Partnership (CSP) produces an annual Strategic
Assessment which provides an accurate evaluation of the significant crime, disorder and
substance misuse issues that may impact the Partnership over the coming year as well as
areas impacting the partnership over the last |12 months.

The plan reflects on the proposed cuts to spending and how these might impact across
a number of the priority areas. Taking into account performance, risk, harm and
vulnerability to victims and the national picture, the following areas have been identified
as the highest priorities for the partnership; Domestic Abuse, Sexual Abuse, Anti-Social
Behaviour, Alcohol Related Violence, Reducing Re-offending, Drug Treatment,
Integrated Offender Management, Hate Crime and Serious Acquisitive Crime (Burglary
Dwelling).

Housing Plan 2012-2017

The Plymouth Housing Plan sets out the city vision for housing across all tenures and
how by working together with residents and partners a real difference to homes and
communities can be made in Plymouth,

The work of the Youth Offending Service (YOS) has particular relevance to the
objectives set in relation to anti-social behaviour: Objective 1-To Reduce anti-social
behavior and hate crime and Objective 2-To reduce significant harm associated with anti
social behavior (ASB) to victims, families and communities.

Youth Offending Service Management Board

The YOS Management Board membership is a mix of strategic and operational managers
from a range of statutory and other partner agencies who contribute to the delivery of
youth justice and preventative services in the city. YOS Board members also take the
lead to champion specific areas and issues and take responsibility to improve services
for young people who offend within their own agencies. The YOS Board receives
quarterly updates from the YOS Manager who reports on performance, service
development and considers issues that need to be resolved in terms of youth justice.
The contribution of the wider partnership and the scrutiny of the YOS Management
Board ensure that an effective forum not only continuously monitors performance in
detail, but also supports the YOS in the implementation of improvement plans.

The Assistant Director for Children’s Social Care has this year taken over the Chairing
of the YOS Board from the Director of Services for Children and Young People after
five years, through two core inspections and key in driving up standards and striving for
excellence.



Page 104

Other board members are;

YOS Manager (PCC), Commissioning Manager from Services for Children and Young
People (PCC), Strategic Commissioning Officer — Reducing Harmful Risk Taking
Behaviour (PCC), Superintendent — Devon and Cornwall Police, Youth Issues Manger -
Devon and Cornwall Police, Assistant Director for Learner and Family Support (PCC),
Senior Education Officer (PCC), Manager Careers South West, Senior Probation Officer
Devon and Cornwall Probation Trust, Senior Accountant (PCC), Director of Plymouth
Racial Equality Council, Manager of Plymouth Community Safety Partnership (PCC),
Manager Anti-Social Behaviour Unit (PCC), Children’s Commissioner for Children and
Young People’s Health, Principal Advisor for Neighbourhood and Informal Learning
(PCC) and a Justices Clerk from Plymouth Magistrates Court.

The average attendance of Board Members listed above for 2010/1 | was 71%.

Nationally Monitored Targets for Youth Justice

Rate of Proven re-offending by young people who offend (measured offences per 100
offenders)

First time entrants to the youth justice system aged 10-17

Young People receiving a conviction in court who are sentenced to custody. A
reduction in the number of children and young people receiving custodial sentences

Locally monitored outcomes for Youth Justice:

Ethnic composition of young people on youth justice system disposals
Access by young people who offend in suitable education, training and employment
Access by young people who offend to suitable accommodation

Participation by victims in Restorative Justice

Plymouth Youth Offending Service

Plymouth Youth Offending Service has the responsibility under the Crime and Disorder
Act 1998 of coordinating the provision of youth justice services for all those in the
authority’s area that need them, with the principal aim being to prevent offending by
children and young people, including:

¢ the provision of an appropriate adult service to safeguard the interests of young
people detained or questioned by the police;

o the assessment of children and young persons and the supervision and provision
of rehabilitation programmes to prevent offending to young people sentenced to
a variety of orders to prevent reoffending and reduce risk of harm.

10



Page 105

e the co-ordination of Risk Management and Vulnerability Management plans for
young people.

¢ the provision of support for young people remanded or committed on bail while
awaiting trial or sentence

e the provision of reports or other information required by courts in criminal
proceedings against children and young persons.

e the responsibility to manage parenting orders.

The key principles of the service are that;

e The service will provide a fair and equitable service to young people with a focus
on risk management based on rigorous assessments of likelihood of reoffending,
risk of harm and vulnerability.

e The service will integrate restorative justice processes across all interventions to
ensure that all young people and parents known to the service are aware of the
impact of crime on the victims and take responsibility to make amends for their
criminal / anti-social behaviour.

e The service will work systemically with the whole family to address negative
patterns of behaviour that increase the risk of offending.

Youth Offending Service Resources

There has been a reduction in funding to the YOS of over £385 000 (approximately
20%). A significant part of this, approximately £202800, funded YOS Prevention
Services. The funding for these has been distributed within the remit of the Early
Intervention Grant (EIG), with Plymouth Local Authority redistributing the funding to
other projects and holding the ‘First Time Entrants’ target centrally rather than as a sole
YOS target.

The element of funding now received from the EIG (£30000) was an acknowledgement
of the funding previously received from Youth Crime Action Plan (YCAP) to provide
‘YOS Officer in custody’ which continues and is used to fund an ‘Out of Hours’ support
to the Police custody suite.

Within the Y|B grant the ring fencing has been removed enabling the YOS to make local
decisions around how the money is spent. Taking into account the YOTs strategic
direction and the YOTs purpose a restructure is taking place to align resources to
enable the YOS to meet National Indicators and effective practice standards within
expected levels of need. The decision was also influenced by the expected direction of
Youth Justice following the Breaking the Cycle Green Paper as well as taking into
account of the YOS’s HMIP Inspection report.

11



Page 106

There was a reduction in numbers of Team Managers in the service from four to three
and the decision was to maintain this level throughout the period of the restructure. A
key recommendation made in the 2010 Inspection Report was in relation to the need to
improve and have clear evidence of quality assurance and decision making by managers.
The YOS also has over 100 volunteers who require management and clear oversight of
their practice which would not be possible with a reduction in management capacity.

In recognising the changes in volumes of work in both numbers of cases held and the
levels of risk they pose, the YOS has restructured the service to merge its Case
Management and Court Team’s together. This has created one Case Management
Team which has a reduced number of Social Work qualified staff with additional non
social work qualified staff which achieves a saving in staff costs.

The creation of a Programme Delivery Team, (which incorporates 1SS, IRS) has slightly
increased costs in this area but enabled the YOS to strengthen the delivery of
interventions and supports the work of the Case Management Team.

A distinct Restorative Justice Team taking into account the direction set by the YOS
management Board and the Green paper has been maintained. This has meant the Final
Warning Team and Restorative Justice Team have been merged and has introduced a
new dedicated Victim Liaison Worker. This will strengthen contact with victims and
drive delivery of restorative justice across all relevant interventions.

These changes have ensured that the YOS is able to stay within budget and meet its
statutory requirements. This has made a saving of £70886.

Partner agencies have continued to fund the YOS, and although there has been an
average reduction of 10% this has not meant a reduction in staff secondments. There
was a significant drop in funding for substance misuse work and the shortfall was
covered by core funding,

The YOS will continue to endeavour to make savings as there are likely to be further
cuts to funding as both core and partner funding reduces over the next few years. The
YOS is involved in the new efficiency drive within the Criminal Justice Sector aimed at
speeding up the process from arrest to sentencing. This involves the police, CPS, HM
courts and the YOS in reducing the physical transfer of paper, greater efficiency in use
of personnel time and routine use of IT systems. Plymouth YOS is already in an
advanced position having access to and using Video Conferencing, secure e-mail systems
and accessing other partner’s databases for information.

There will be increased work with partners including those in the third sector to
support bids to draw additional funding into the city with the aim of reducing youth
offending.

Within the Green Paper there are also plans to reform secure remand for young people
so that all children under |18 are treated in the same way for remand purposes, rather

i2



Page 107

than treating |7 year olds as adults. This will ensure compliance with the United Nations
Convention on the Rights of the Child. All young people who are securely remanded
will become “looked after” by the local authority and this is laid out in the Legal Aid,
Sentencing and Punishment of Offenders Bill. In addition, local authorities will become
financially responsible for all youth remands to secure accommodation with the aim of
providing an incentive for local authorities to invest in alternative strategies for this

group of young people.

There is also an additional need to prepare for a possible decrease in budget in
2012/2013 as the Youth Justice Board are currently reviewing the formula used to
distribute the Youth Justice grant amongst YOTs in England and Wales. There are
discussions that future funding could be based on some or a combination of the
following; the existing core grant formula , Indices of Multiple Deprivation, size of area,
volume of offences weighted against gravity score and number of community and
custodial disposals. These changes could have an impact of either reducing our budget
by 5% (approx £30 000) through to increasing the budget by 24% (approx £137 000)
based on Y|B calculations. The principles when determining a new formula includes that
the funding formula should support delivery against the three Youth Justice outcomes
indicators, that there should be no perverse incentives and that there should be the
least possible disruption to YOS financial planning.

This does not relate to linking the Youth Justice grant to payment by results (PBR)
although this is being explored for 2013/2014,

Funding Comparison Table

Y)B-

Effective Practice
ISS

IRS

Drugs & alcohol
KYPE

Prevention
Total

Partnership funding
Police-

Probation-

Health-

PCC- CSC

PCC- EDUC

Total

2010/11 2011712
(£5) (£)
241,989.00
159,680.00
50,000.00
46,253.00
28,746.00
165,997.00
692,665.00 565,689.00
| 18887.00 111387.00
90000.00 81798.00
70823.00 63740.70
585293.00 535293.00
69372.00 69372.00
934375.00 861590.70

13




Page 108

Additional funding streams

YCAP 79594.00 0.00
YISP 75875.00 0.00
Outreach 62016.00 0.00
EIG 30000.00
Positive Futures 40000.00 40000.00
SIP 25000.00 25000.00
Total 217485.00 30000.00
Overall Totals 1,844,525.00 1,457,279.70

Plymouth YOS Structure and Work Streams

As stated in the Resource section of this plan the work of the YOS is to be delivered
through three distinct teams with the focus being the reduction of reoffending and the
management of risk. This is more often than not done in partnership with other
Children’s Services to ensure young offenders and those at risk of offending have
improved outcomes including; increased resilience, improved mental health, increased
aspiration and attainment, reduction in vulnerability and the reduction in Risk of Harm
to Others.

The three teams are;-

Case Management Team

This team is responsible for working in court and managing all court ordered
interventions. This includes the assessment, intervention planning, risk and vulnerability
management in all cases.

The case management team work within clear risk a management procedure which
includes the use of Risk and Vulnerability Management Meetings, MAPPA, MARAC and
the pathway for Children & Young People who sexually harm others which includes the
use of specialist assessments.

Programme Delivery Team

This team consists of specialists seconded and deployed from partner agencies and YOS
employed programme delivery staff who receive referrals from the case management
team. Their role is to provide timely and appropriate interventions to support the case
managers intervention plans (including Risk and Vulnerability Management) to reduce
offending, risk of harm and building young people’s resilience.

The work previously delivered by the distinct and separately funded ISS and IRS teams

are now being incorporated into this team but remains priority work and are resourced
accordingly.

14



Page 109

This team will also have capacity to develop, coordinate and deliver groupwork
interventions across the service which can be delivered as requirements within Youth
Rehabilitation Orders.

Staff in this team include Education Welfare Officer, Psychiatric nurse, Substance Misuse
Worker, Accommodation Worker and a Parenting Worker.

The YOS has a parenting worker who is creating links with Children’s Social Care
Family Support Team and proactively offers parents and carers support. They are
responsible for the delivery of parenting contracts and parenting orders as given by the
court. Additional parental support is provided to parents of the most likely to reoffend
and high risk young people who includes those in custody. Parents and carers of young
people contained in the secure estate receive support to visit their child and receives
support throughout the sentence with particular focus delivered as resettlement
support. This works links closely to the work of the IRS role

The IRS seeks to ensure that all young people coming out of custody are given the best
possible support to enable them to lead crime-free lives. The objective of IRS is to
support the resettlement of young people leaving custody through: reducing reoffending,
addressing substance misuse issues, addressing other needs and vulnerabilities, for
example, those surrounding accommodation, mental health, education, training and
employment as well as working with parents, carers, families and peers.

The Secondary Inclusion Programme is a jointly funded piece of work between the YOS
and Plymouth Excellence Cluster. It was previously managed through the YOS
Prevention Team. It currently provides a three week programme for young people who
are either on a fixed term exclusion or are requiring a preventative intervention to
prevent future exclusions. Currently work is being undertaken to bring the work of the
SIP inline with that of Plymouth ACE to benefit both young people referred into the
programme from schools and academies as well as creating opportunities of young
people registered with ACE. This should allow for young people involved with the YOS
and who are not engaging in 25 hours education to receive a SIP intervention to move
them back into more formal educational settings.

Positive Futures was also previously managed through the YOS Prevention Team but
now is placed in the Programme Delivery Team. Positive Futures is an intervention
based social inclusion project working within the Programme Delivery Team.
Interventions are focused to reduce young people’s substance misuse and criminal
behaviour. a variety of interventions including sports activities, arts projects, TKAP
(knife crime) group work, substance misuse programme and healthy living programmes
are used to effect positive change. The project was previously based in one
neighbourhood of Plymouth but due to its success (Gold standard for 2010-20| [) in
meeting both national and local objectives it was agreed that it be delivered as a
citywide project.

15



Page 110

Positive Futures will work across Plymouth with key partners to coordinate the
strategic development and delivery of positive activities and interventions for young
people who are at risk of social exclusion and offending behaviour. This work will be
undertaken in line with this Youth Justice Plan and Plymouths Children’s and Young
People’s Plan 2011-2014 to enable the public and private sectors to improve the lives of
young people in health, education raising aspirations, reducing inequality and offending
behaviour.

Restorative Justice Team

Plymouth Youth Offending Service is committed to the principles of Restorative Justice
and is aware of the great benefits that this can bring to both victims and offenders in
terms of the victim coming to terms with an offence which has been committed against
them and the offender taking responsibility and making amends for their actions.

Restorative Justice is a focus within the government green paper and the setting up of a
distinct R] Team was driven by the YOS Management Board due to the priority it places
on restorative justice locally.

The R] Team is made up by an R] Coordinator, a seconded police officer, a victim liaison
officer as well as support workers who deliver restorative reparation.

The desired outcomes include; the increasing of the range and availability of Restorative
Justice Interventions, the putting of the victim at the forefront of the R] process and to

build increased public confidence in the service.

Data around the participation of victims is reported to the YOS Management Board on
a quarterly basis.

Delivery against Key National Indicators

Rate of Proven re-offending by young people who offend (measured offences per 100 offenders)

Annual
Target Ql Q2 Q3 Q4 Final Rate
2010/11 101 34.9 71.2 93.8 120.5 120.5
2009/10 105 15.0 40.0 55.6 62.2 62.2
Quarterly Target (2010/2011) 40.7 67.9 95.0 101.0

16




Page 111

140.0

120.0 +
100.0 +
80.0 +
60.0 +
40.0 1
20.0 +

0.0

Q1 Q2

Q3 Q4

||:|2005 Baseline . Quarterly 10/11 —a— Annual Target —s<— 2009/10

What we have achieved 2010/201 1

Throughout 2010/2011 the target was met throughout the
first three quarters and was only exceeded in the last
quarter. The reoffending rate in the last quarter however
did mean that the year target was not met. This was in
large part due to 3 young people within the cohort being
convicted for in excess of 10 offences each within the final
quarter. Without these young people the performance
would have been on or within the target level set.

Whilst 2009/10 performance was substantially better (62.2
offences per 100 young people) it should be noted that 63
young people re-offended against 66 for 2010/2011. When
also comparing these two years, 2009/10 cohort comprised
225 young people whilst the latest only contained 146.

This coupled with the overall reduction in the annual
number of offences & young people receiving convictions
tells us that there are a small group of prolific offenders
responsible for a disproportionate level of offending. This
matches national offending patterns.

How we will improve 2011/2012

The introduction of Deter Young Offender
procedures will ensure earlier targeting of those
individuals who are most likely to have high
reoffending rates. Deter Young Offenders are
young people in the youth justice system who
will require an intensive level of intervention.
Plymouth Deter Youth Offending (DYO)
procedures have been developed in conjunction
with partners.

A young person meets DYO status if their
assessment indicates that they have a high
likelihood of reoffending or they have a high risk
or very high risk of serious harm. Young people
subject to bail or remand can also be
considered within the DYO criteria. ’

The YOS has introduced DYO case planning
forums on a monthly basis which provides multi
agency input in the development of clear
intervention, vulnerability and risk management
plans with management oversight. This will be
monitored in line with reoffending rates of the
YOS as well as through any changes in
assessment scores and risk levels.

There is the possibility that the DYO work
could increase reoffending rates due to closer
information sharing between the YOS and the
Police but this would meet with one of the
strategic aims of the Y|B that ‘more offenders

1




Page 112

are caught, held to account for their actions’.

There will also be case reviews around the
three young people that were convicted of a
high number of offences in quarter four
(2009/2010) and any learning will be
disseminated through the Management Board.

First time entrants to the youth justice system aged 10-17

Annual Final
Target Ql Q2 Q3 Q4 Total
2010/11 308 57 99 79 - 65 307
2009/10 366 113 80 56 63 312
2005 Baseline
Quarterly Target
(zo10/2011) 77 77 77 77

-

Q1

Ao na
lm 200910 actual == 2010/11 aclual —— Quarterly Target

Q4

What we have achieved 2010/201 1

Measurement of FTE has been changed at year end from a
number count to a rate per 100,000 of population and is
based upon PNC data supplied by the police.

There was a substantial reduction in recorded FTE during
the 2009/10 year which was largely attributed to the
introduction of the Youth Restorative Disposal which
accounted for an average reduction in reprimands by
approximately 30%. The continued use of Youth
Restorative Disposal (YRD) has maintained the levels of
reduction through into 2010/ 1. A discrepancy between
YOS figures and that of the police were identified and is
currently being researched.

One of the main achievements of the YOS Prevention
Service was the maintaining of its function during the time

18

How we will improve in 2011/2012

Due to the reconfiguration of services following
the Early Intervention Grant this target has
become a citywide target and will be a priority for
the developing integrated locality based services
which will provide services that are high quality,
efficient and coordinated around the needs of
children, young people and their families.

We will identify families where there are siblings
of young offenders and will target parenting
resources towards them with referrals of siblings
to prevention and early intervention services.

We will continue to support the work of the SIP
to provide provision for those at risk of exclusion
from school which may in turn lead to offending.




Page 113

when all staff were at risk of redundancy. All staff outside
of the SIP and Positive Futures which have been kept under

YOS Management have been redeployed in other
Children’s Services.

We will support preventative and third sector
provision in work related to the reduction of risks
related to entry into the Youth Justice System.

Young People receiving a conviction in court who are sentenced to custody.

No. of
Young Annual
People Target Ql Q2 Q3 Q4 Final Rate
2010/2011 18 5% 4.8% 3.5% 1.6% 7.6% 4.2%
2009/2010 20 5% 3.9% 6.2% 4.6% 1.7% 4.5%
Quarterly Target 5% 5% 5% 5%
8.0%
7.0% +
6.0% +
2] I = T == Quarterly 09/10
4.0% + 1 Quarterly 010/11
3.0% & —4&— Annual Target
2.0% +
1.0% + I
0.0% . .
Q1 Q2 03 Q4 CumfYTD

What we have achieved 2010/201 |

Plymouth YOS has performed well against its
family group with a final year custodial rate of
4.2% against the national average of 5.6% and
family average of 5.9%.

There were a total of 19 young people receiving
20 custodial sentences during 2010/1 1. Of these
all classified their ethnicity as white uk. Three
were female. One of the males received two
separate Detention & Training Orders during the
period.

In all cases the custodial sentences were received
for serious offences (e.g. burglary or robbery
offences) or due to persistent offending. Failure to
comply with previous orders also featured
amongst this group.

How we will improve in 2011/2012

The YOS will maintain the delivery of ISS to provide a
robust community sentence when the courts are
considering custody. There is also a new Courts
Procedure which will enable clear oversight and multi
agency input for all young people at risk of receiving a
custodial sentence. The development of the Programme
delivery team will also provide interventions that the court
can refer young people to as part of their sentence. This
team will also link with other agencies to provide a wide
range of sentencing options and constructive opportunities
for young people to support them remaining in the
community.

The YOS will however continue to recommend custodial
sentences to the court in the most serious cases when it is
felt necessary to protect the public or to reduce future
offending. The maintaining of the ISS function within the

19




Page

114

In the final quarter the quarterly target was not
met but this did not cause the year target not to
be met in the main due to the good performance
in quarter 3. In this quarter 4 there were 8
custodial sentences against a total of 105 court
disposals (7.6%).

Of the 8, 2 were female, and all were self
classified as of white ethnicity. The two females
had a history of offending and failing to comply
with previous orders. The remaining males had
committed serious offences of robbery (3) and
burglary (2). The other having a history of
offending and failure to comply with previous
orders including periods of custody.

This target remains as a national target for
2011/12.

Delivery against Local Targets

Programme Delivery Team provides the court with the
most robust community option as an alternative to
custody. The mandatory inviting of the ISS Coordinator
to All Option PSR Panels will trigger an assessment
completed by the ISS Coordinator to be presented to the
court.

The Integrated Resettlement Support will remain in place
as a discrete element of the programme delivery team to
provide enhanced resettlement support for those leaving
custody with the aim of preventing any future offending and
possible return to custody.

Ethnic composition of young people on youth justice system disposals

% of BME young people from year cohort

Ql Q2 Q3 Q4 Final Rate

2010/2011 5.40% 2.20% 2,10% 5.10% 4.20%
2009/2010 1.0% 3.2% 2.2% 2.2% 2.2%
Target 4.5% 4.5% 4.5% 4.5% 4.5%
6.0%
& & — i

4.0% T

B Quarterly 09/10
— Quarierly 10/11

2.0% +

I_' [1 —4— Target

o] Q2 Q3

Q4 cum/ytd

What we have achieved 2010/201 1

How we will improve in 2011/2012

Ethnic Breakdown of all young people receiving convictions | YOS research previously found that the three
in 2010/201 | is as follows; White 554, Mixed Heritage 9, main areas which contributed to Black Minority

Asian 5, Black 9.

Ethnic (BME) young people’s offending in
Plymouth were issues of identity, the experience

20




Page 115

With the national comparison data available our target has
been adjusted to 4.5%. On this basis Plymouth has come
within target although it is still acknowledged that more up
to date data is held locally which indicates Black Minority
Ethnic (BME) population is higher than the adjusted target
level suggests.

of racism and cultural tension. We also have
qualitative data suggesting that a significant
number of white young people involved in the
Youth Justice System harbour racist and
prejudicial views. The YOS is therefore including
work to challenge these attitudes and raise
cultural awareness with all young people involved
with the service. The Programme Delivery Team
have developed a groupwork programme titled
Cultural Diversity and Awareness. It is thought
that this will impact positively on the number of
BME young people in the criminal justice system.

Access by young people who offend in suitable education, training and employment

No. of
Young Annual Final
2010/11 People Target Ql Q2 Q3 Q4 Rate
School Age 80 72.2% 94.0% 73.7% 64.3% 76.2%
Over School Age 183 48.6% 47.9% 73.6% 57.4% 57.9%
Total 263 56.6% 60.0% 73.6% | 61.6% 63.5%
Target 79.1% 79.1% 79.1% | 79.1% | 79.1% 79.1%

||::! School Age ) Over School Age —+— Targel

What we have achieved 2010/201 1

There has been a drop in performance in this area for
Plymouth of 6.1%. From 2009/10 to 2010/1 1.

For year 2010/1 | there has been a drop in performance
across both the region and nationally. Regionally the level
of young people at the end of their order was 70.9% a
drop of 3.6% and nationally the level was 72.8% a drop of
.5%.

21

How we will improve in 2011/2012

School Age

Close links between the YOS and ACE with
weekly meetings to coordinate support and
interventions around those who are not
accessing education provided. Linking the SIP
with the ACE Services will also support young
people accessing suitable education. YOS
involvement with Plymouth Tuition Service




Page 116

School Age

There was a continued focus on working in partnership
with Plymouth Tuition Services known as ACE to support
and engage some of our shared young people. Within ACE
there was a new head appointed and they have undergone
a number of restructures and good relationships were
developed between the YOS and the new service.

The use of Personal Education Plans for all YOS young
people enrolled with ACE has been reinforced and this has
supported the use of YRO Education Requirements.

The YOS has developed practice to comply with the
Apprenticeship, Skills and Children’s Learning (ASCL) Act
2009 to ensure the educational needs of young people in
and leaving custody are met. All young people leaving
Custody returned to appropriate provision.

Over School Age

The lack of employment opportunities and the constriction
of preparatory training courses in Plymouth following the
loss of European Social Funding and HM Treasury funding
across the region has had an impact on the opportunities
available for young people. This is particularly so for young
people involved in the YOS who often have low
qualification levels, history of school exclusions and limited
support networks and they are often competing with
young people with A star grades.

As unemployment rises it is known that the labour market
for young people is impacted on greatest and with
uncertainty from employers about future options there is a
reluctance to commit to offering young people jobs and
apprenticeships.

It has been found that if young people are to leave a
training programme it is most likely to be after 3 to 6
months of starting. It is noted that this often coincides
with the end of a young offenders YOS intervention where
the level of supervision drops before ending completely.
Some funding has been secured to address this issue.

22

Management committee will support this closer
working relationship and better referral and
communication between ACE and YOS. A new
behaviour management system with rewards
and sanctions is being introduced across ACE to
encourage attendance and engagement in
school. YOS will support this alongside the
Education Welfare Service through the use of
the full range of legislative options. ACE has
also recruited a home school liaison officer to
support the families of young people, acting as
both an advocate and a critical friend.

The closer working relationship and referrals
form ACE to SIP will also be a way to improve
throughout 201 1/12

Over School Age

Close working arrangements have been
enhanced between YOS and Careers South
West with named link managers and a named
Careers South West link for YOS practitioners.
Shared procedures have been developed to
ensure all young people not accessing suitable
education training and employment are
identified and targeted. Careers South West
have also supported the development of the
DYO Case Planning Forums and are committed
to attending.

Funding from the 14-19 Participation fund has
been secured (as mentioned) to employ a
support worker to focus on those not accessing
ETE or at risk of leaving ETE provision
approaching the end of their YOS involvement
and a period beyond. The sustainability of the
post will be required to be mainstreamed locally
if successful through existing commissioning
arrangements.

Consideration on how to give positive messages
to employers and how support services could
be commissioned would also benefit YOS
clients so that the provision available fits young
people and not vice versa. This would support




Page 117

the working towards the meeting of the target
which will remain a challenge.

Access by young people who offend to suitable accommodation

Final
- Year
Ql Q2 Q3 Q4 Rate
201072011 97.00% | 95.90% | 97.3% | 97.5% | 96.90%
2009/2010 96% 99% 99% 96.0% 97.5%
Annual Target 95.0% 95.0% | 95.0% | 95.0% 95%
100%
99% +
97% | o e = Quarterly 09/10)]
C—Quartery 10/11
96% —&— Annual Target
95% +
94% +
93%
Qi Q2 Q3 Q4 Cum/YTD

What we have achieved 2010/201 1

Plymouth YOS has ensured that our young people follow a
pathway when threatened or are homeless that prioritises
a return to their parent and carers if it is safe to do so.
Much of the work in this area is done in partnership with
colleagues from Children’s Social Care.

Systems are in place to ensure that all young people who
are presenting risk factors in ‘living arrangements’ and/or
‘family and personal relationships’ are referred to either
the YOS’s Parenting Worker or the Accommodation
Officer to ensure timely homelessness prevention work.

The YOS also sits on the HUB a decision making panel to
allocate supported housing.

The majority of cases ‘not in suitable accommodation’ are
in short term Bed and Breakfast placements while their
housing pathway is being confirmed. Thorough risk
assessments support these placements by either Children’s
Social Care or Housing. The YOS in partnership with

23

How we will improve in 2011/2012

The YOS is involved in strategic decision making
and commissioning processes across all areas of
Housing of young people and advocates for
services to meet the needs of young offenders.
This includes young person'’s early intervention,
homeless floating support and prevention
service and the development of the Integrated
Support Team (IST). There is also involvement
in the creation of a housing pathway to prevent
the use of B&B using local hostels where a
placement from the hostel would lead directly
into supported housing,

Joint procedures are being followed by
Children’s Social Care and YOS for young
people leaving custody who are at risk of
homelessness as well as more preventative
measures for those where accommodation
might become an issue following family
breakdown.




Page 118

other agencies provides additional support throughout this
period.

The YOS will continue to be represented on-all
housing, planning panels that monitor and
provide resources for young people's housing to

keep YOS young people's needs high on the
agenda,

Participation by victims in Restorative Justice

201072011 Ql Q2 Q3 Q4 Total
Offences with Victims 46 57 47 51 201
Victims Offered RJ 16 34 43 46 139
% of Victims Offered R] 35% 60% 92% 90% 69%
Direct R] Delivered 0 | 8 9 18
Indirect R] Delivered 11 2 2 0 5
% R] Delivered 24% 5% 21% 20% 16%
Quarterly Target 25% 25% 25% 25% 25%
100%
80% -
60% -
a0 - e
e H i P ]
0% T : .

¥ e L}

T
D

ﬁ:} % offered RJ — % RJ delivered

Quarterly Target '

What we have achieved 2010/201 |

With regard to number of victims being offered R| there
was a significant improvement throughout the year with
90% of victims being contacted in quarter 4. This is related
to the development of RJ Procedures and in Q3 the
appointment of a Victim Liaison Officer.

It is encouraging to note however that the level of Direct
R] significantly improved throughout the year.

Out of 316 orders closing 20! had offences with a victim.

24

How we will improve in 2011/2012

The target for victims offered R) from those
Offences with victims will be set at 90% and R|
is clearly stated as a priority by the management
Board and is reflected in the team structure.

The R] procedure that has been developed will -
be rolled out across the service following the

completion of the restructure and forming of a
distinct R) team.




Page 119

The focus is for the service to place the victim
at the forefront of the R] process and to build
public confidence in R| by raising awareness,
There is also the aim of increasing the range and
availability of R} interventions.

There will also be the role out of a Victim
Awareness Programme that will be delivered
either as group work or one to one to all young
people involved in the service.

Activity in Support of Key Performance Indicators and National Standards

Yolunteers

Over 2010/11, Plymouth Youth Offending Service was supported by a team of around
100 volunteers, acting across a range of roles: '
o Appropriate Adults: supporting young people in Charles Cross police station.
e Referral Panel Members: providing restorative justice interventions for young
people involved in the youth court system.
e Mentors: operating on a one to one basis with young people to engage them in
positive activities
¢ Prevention Team volunteers:
e Co-mediators

Over this period we significantly expanded the remit of volunteers, building on the
quality of work we consistently see undertaken. We have implemented an evening shift
for Appropriate Adults to support Plymouth's Out of Hours department, so increasing
the efficiency of the police custody process. Volunteers have also supported reparation
sessions, and acted as parenting and victim mentors. And volunteers have produced a
film to present to victims of crime to promote their involvement in restorative
processes.

Looking forward, we are in the process of training volunteers to formalize their
involvement in the reparation process. Our mentoring scheme has been extended
across the Services for Children and Young People department, to work with young
people at risk of offending. We recognize that volunteers carry the potential to add
value to the work undertaken by the YOS, and we are committed to enabling them to
make a meaningful contribution.

The impact that volunteers have made has been significant. For example, according to
Out Of Hours:

28




Page 120

with regards to the evenings, it was a great help to have significant cover last month.
There may be times when we have to prioritise responses and Appropriate Adult may
not be at the top of the social worker's list’.

And, volunteers have benefitted from the opportunities available:

‘my manager told me that my experience as an Appropriate Adult was key to me getting
my job as a legal secretary’.

Quality Assurance

Our aim is to provide the best possible services and opportunities to children who
become involved in the work of the YOS and have implemented a system of Quality
Assurance that will seek not only to ensure processes are completed, but that they will
also have a focus on the required outcomes of those processes and the impact they are
having on people’s lives. Quality assurance in this context is about ensuring we exercise
sound judgments, based on good information and understanding, operating to the
highest standards and expectations.

Quality Assurance work has begun with the Quality Assuring of assessments as stated in
Plymouth YOS Improvement Plan following the HMIP Inspection which took place in
2009. This recognises the importance of assessments particularly following the
implementation of the Scaled Approach. They are considered to be the foundation for
all work undertaken in the YOS and this is reflected in the Audit Commission’s 2004
report on youth justice which recommends that YOTs should make better use of
assessment to determine the amount as well as the nature of interventions with
individuals using a scaled approach. Other quality assurance measures that are being
taken are the gatekeeping of all reports for panels and courts as well as management
oversight of all Risk of Serious Harm forms and all Risk Management Plans and
Vulnerability Management Plans.

In line with the Quality Assurance work taking place there has been and will continue to
be the development of clear policies, processes and procedures that cover the full and
varied remit of the service. This will ensure that the YOS is fit for purpose and
organizationally defensible. Policies and procedures that are being developed and
implemented over this year are; Risk, Courts, Custody, Restorative Justice and Quality
Assurance.

Improving Public Confidence

The YOS is committed to increasing public confidence and with this in mind has
developed a website that is being promoted through the council website and
promotional material and presentations at city events. Neighbourhood liaison meetings
will be used to promote the use of RJ and to offer reparation in the localities. The
service will actively promote good news stories through the local press and national
youth justice communications

26



Page 121

Service User Participation

A key way to guide the direction and improve effectiveness of the service is to begin to
gather feedback from service users; offenders and- their families as well as victims and
partners. This will also improve opportunities for young people to make a positive
contribution. By enabling young people to actively evaluate the service they receive we
aim to ultimately improve the quality of both the service and outcome for the young
people involved with it. This can be difficult when young people have negative attitudes
towards authority and those in the Criminal Justice System as below.

“You send me to prison and then ask me to complete a questionnaire — you can ‘bleep’,
lol” (Written on a questionnaire and passed to ISS Team)

The YOS has developed a strategy to begin to allow young people to enable them to
participate and influence key decisions that shape their lives. (Article 12 of the United
Nations Convention on the Rights of the Child). This will provide opportunities for
children and young people; to respond to the YOS's interventions that affect their lives,
to identify and raise issues they think are important, make changes to service provision
based on what they say and ultimately to support the YOS in providing better outcomes
for all those involved with the service.

User Feedback
Feedback from young people

Completion of ISS — “Help me think twice before | act cuz | want to stay out of trouble
and my family and ISS have helped me do that” — when asked if we could do anything
more he said —| don’t think so cuz ISS does lots for people” (Alex W)

Bail Completion —custody sentence — “made me realise there is more to life than just
being on the streets and drinking and smoking, it helped me choose the right sort of

people to hang around with and got me in college” (Harry M)

"Found support help me through, lots of difficult times"
(Ms C Devonport)

"Parenting Wisely programme ,highlighted some effective methods of parenting "
(Mr +Mrs R St. Budeaux)

"Good to have someone, who listened to me”
(Mr ] Derriford)

"My Aaron would be living elsewhere, without the support from YOS"
(Mrs G Plympton)

27



Page 122

YOS Management Board Chair sign-off

Signature Date
[}
<@
MW ad MNJ\[&.X . 26" October 2011
Name

Mairead MacNeil

YOS Management sign-off
Signat Date

26'" October 2011

Name
Benji Shoker

Youth Offending Service MANAGER

28



Page 123

Agenda Item 13

Children and Young People’s Overview and Scrutiny Panel

Work Programme 2011/12

Topics

Commissioning, Policy and
Performance

Performance and Budget
- Delivering growth

- Raising Aspiration

- Reducing Inequalities

- Value for Communities

14

13

Learner and Family
Support

Hospital School (Review July
2011)

School Transport (under
regular review)

10

Locality Review

Lifelong Learning

Commission on School
Libraries (Written Report)

Primary School Attainment
(Written Report)

Work Experience

14

Adult Learning

Children’s Social Care

Independent Foster Placement
Costings/Recruitment of Foster
Carers (Under regular review)

10

Adoption Inspection

Children’s Health

Child Poverty

10




Page 124

Topics

Task and Finish Groups

Young Carers Task and Finish
Group — review of
recommendations (Sept 201 )

Apprenticeships (November)

22

Children’s Mental Health to inc
Emotional Wellbeing and
Mental Health Strategy and
Emotional Health of Children

&1

Updates

Policy Updates/Legislative
Changes

14

10

Quarterly Scrutiny Reports

Update from Children and
Young People’s Trust

14

10

Update from Corporate
Parenting Group

10

Update from Local Safeguarding
Children’s Board

14

Update from relevant LSP
Theme Groups

14

10

Strategies and Plans

Children and Young People’s
Plan (Action Plan) (July 2011)

13

Youth Justice Action Plan
(Review July 201 1)

10

Training and Development

Development Session for panel
members

Key:

New Item = #




	Agenda
	3 MINUTES
	5 TRACKING RESOLUTIONS AND FEEDBACK FROM MANAGEMENT BOARD
	Briefing November 2011 CWDC Induction
	Briefing paper 10 Nov 11
	Priorities and Challenges - 15 Munro Recommendations
	CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLE OVERVIEW - young carers
	Further information

	6a Corporate Parenting Group
	Children in care overview Scrutiny

	6b Children and Young People's Trust
	CYPT

	7 TASK AND FINISH GROUP REPORT
	8 INTEGRATED YOUTH SUPPORT SERVICE
	9 PRIORITIES AND CHALLENGES
	11 CHILD POVERTY
	appendix 1 scrutiny child poverty action plan

	12 YOUTH JUSTICE PLAN
	13 WORK PROGRAMME

